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FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

Fiscal 2004 has been a year of many significant accomplishments as we continued a very
high level of investment in R&D, substantially increased our sales and marketing
expenditures and grew at a higher rate than have most of our direct competitors. But,
profitability did not meet our expectations as we had anticipated even better growth and
higher gross margins on our products. By the fourth quarter of 2004, however, we believe the

trends necessary for sustained profitability improvement were evident.

Our core markets in backing up and archiving data are expanding and changing rapidly.
Customers remain extremely concerned about protecting data and optimizing data storage as
volumes of computerized data continue to increase. These are markets that justify our

ongoing investment.

ADIC is a leader in the market for tape-based storage products, and our agreement to become
the “tape partner” of EMC Corporation was a major strategic accomplishment in 2004. EMC,
one of the world’s leading data storage companies, has endorsed ADIC technologies and is
now reselling ADIC-branded products across and among its existing and potential customer
base. We see this relationship as both a confirmation of ADIC's position in the marketplace

and an opportunity for accelerated growth of our branded sales.

While tape technology continues to play a vital and continuing role in most customers’
solutions, the development of alternative technologies in disk-based backup and storage
software has increased competition and introduced both uncertainty and delay in customer
decision-making. ADIC has made significant investment in these alternative technologies,
including disk-based backup, which positions us very well to participate in continued storage

market expansion,.

We are gratified, in particular, at the acceptance of our new Pathlight® VX disk-based backup
solution during fiscal 2004. We believe this product is the most comprehensive and scalable
disk-based backup solution available in our marketplace today. It represents the intersection
of several key ADIC technologies, including disk file systems, tape emulation, data movement
and library management. Several large and technically sophisticated customers have
purchased, implemented and re-ordered Pathlight VX solutions in capacities aggregating up
to 100TB per account. Subsequent to the end of our 2004 fiscal year, we announced the
release of Pathlight VX 2.0, a new generation disk-backup product which offers customers

significant increases in capacity and dramatic reductions in cost.
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Both' Pathlight VX sales and our reseller partnership with EMC have the potential to drive
revehue growth, margin expansion and improved profitability at ADIC. Fourth quarter
demonstrated that potential through a significant rebound in margin percentage and an all-

timejrecord in branded sales.

I ended our fiscal 2003 Shareholder Letter with an admonition that “the essential validation of
our strategy must come in 2004 and 2005.” We are not yet able to claim unambiguous

validation of ADIC’s strategy, but our confidence in its correctness and ultimate profitability is

undiminished.

Thank you to all shareholders and ADIC Team Members for your continued support.

Sincerely,

Peterivan Oppen

Chair:_and Chief Executive Officer




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended October 31, 2004

or

[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period From . to ‘
Commission file number 0-21103

Advanced Digital Information Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Washington ' 91-1618616
(State or other jurisdiction of : (1.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
P.O. Box 97057 98073-9757
11431 Willows Road N.E. (Zip Code)

Redmond, Washington

(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
(425) 881-8004

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

) : Name of each exchange
Title of each class on which registered

(None) (None)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Stock

Preferred Stock Purchase Rights
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the

registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part lll of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule
12b-2) Yes No []

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant is $644,898,640 as of
April 30, 2004, based on the closing sale price of such stock on the Nasdaqg National Market on that date.

There were 63,780,563 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 15, 2004.

The information requested by ltems 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of Part lli, to the extent not set forth herein, is
incorporated by reference to the proxy statement to be filed in connection with the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on March 10, 2005.




PART |

Item 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Such forward-
looking staternents include, among others, those statements including the words “expect,” “anticipate,”
‘intend,” “believe” and similar expressions. QOur actual results could differ materially from those
discussed in this report. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include but are not
limited to the risks discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” as well as elsewhere herein.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of theidate hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the result of any revisions to
these forward-looking statements that may be required to reflect events or circumstances after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Company Overview

ADIC® isa leading provider of Intelligent Storage™ solutions for the open systems marketplace.
We design, market, sell and support hardware and software products that help a broad range of
business and governmental organizations store, manage, access and protect their large-scale data
more effectively. IT departments face increasingly complex data storage problems that can no longer
be solved efficiently by purchasing more low-cost commodity products or adding raw capacity.
Recognizing this fact, we apply innovative technologies to provide management and automation
leverage so that our customers can solve their data storage problems more easily and make more
effective use of their digital assets and human resources.

Industry Background

Information technology departments in businesses and government offices face an expanding set
of problems wiith storing their data. Digitization has become nearly universal, with a variety of
information now relying on digital format as its primary form. This phenomenon applies to
business-critical records of all kinds, including documents, images and communications, as well as to
the actual products of entire industries—including television broadcasting and Internet services.
Intensifying the impact of this data wave is the rise of broadband communications and the ease of
copying and moving records among users and sites. With a single mouse click, multiple copies of the
same file—a picture, a presentation, a video clip, a spreadsheet—are sent to servers around the world,
and copied over and over again.

The net effect is a rapid increase in the total amount of data being stored and managed, an
increase that may outpace any change in fundamental business activity. The data storage
requirements of virtually every company increase year after year, whether or not the business is
growing.

Adding to: the complexity of the data-management task are regulatory and economic issues.
Virtually every company is now dealing with regulatory requirements from different organizations that
recognize the critical value of this data and that mandate both its long-term preservation and rapid
access. Different industries are affected by different regulations, and the interpretation of requirements
is not always straightforward; however, organizations of all types recognize the significance of storing
and protecting their data over time. At the same time, IT organizations find themselves under pressure
to increase operational efficiencies by doing more with the same—or reduced—staff levels. IT
departments Have come to expect that every year they will face the problem of how to manage more
data, in more places.

This situation makes it very difficult for many companies to continue to operate in the ways they
had in the past, and it drives a rapidly increasing need for value-add solutions aimed to solve storage
problems.
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Part of the solution can be found in new technologies associated with storage and with information
management:

+ Flexible, lower cost open system, client server platforms using UNIX, Linux and Windows
operating systems are replacing mainframe environments.

+ Storage media, both fixed and removable, have been developed to provide more capacity and
more different kinds of capacity at lower cost.

« Data transmission transports, including Fibre Channel and Internet Protocol, have been
applied to storage solutions.

+ New networking techniques designed specifically for storage have developed, including
Storage Area Networks (SANs) and Network Attached Storage (NAS).

Each of these technologies, however, can also have the effect of creating additional adoption and
integration tasks for overworked IT departments struggling to keep up with the growth of data and the
requirements to manage it. Technologies alone, especially in their early phases, cannot provide the
operating leverage that is achieved with a comprehensive data management solution.

Strategy

Our strategy is to design and develop innovative hardware and software solutions that help
organizations deal with the widespread surge in digital data—enabling them to store, manage, access
and protect their data more effectively and efficiently. To do this, we develop and acquire core
intellectual property and use the resulting technology to provide organizations with the ability to
surmount their data management challenges intelligently and control their digital assets easily and
transparently.

Maintaining independence from any one tape, disk or other storage format continues to be a key
strategic tenet, allowing us to take advantage of innovative storage format developments. Because we
focus on providing complete solutions, our products may include a variety of storage types, including
various tape formats, magnetic disk, optical or emerging technologies—combined with our proprietary
connectivity and management features. Heterogeneous support of open-systems platforms is also an
important differentiating feature, and we remain committed to creating software and hardware solutions
designed to work in these (UNIX, Linux and Windows) environments.

We deliver integrated data management and storage through multiple sales channels. Selection of
these sales channels is dependent on their ability to access end user customers and help us meet
customer needs. We typically sell our newest, most innovative products through our ADIC branded
channels—and utilize OEM channels to deliver more established higher volume products to broader
markets.

Products

Our principal products fall broadly into three categories: automated tape libraries, data
management software and disk-based data protection solutions. These three product categories, in
combination with related offerings from our global services group, define the vast majority of our
business.

Automated Tape Libraries

Our tape libraries are high capacity innovative storage solutions. Our libraries substantially
increase the value associated with commodity tape drives by integrating them into a full system using a
combination of automation technology, advanced connectivity and effective management tools. These
library solutions are primarily used to back up networked data in open systems environments that
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deploy UNIX, Linux or Windows servers, and they integrate several tape drive technologies from
different suppliers. Today, the preferred tape drive choices are LTO, DLT/SDLT and AIT technologies.
In each of 2001, 2002 and 2003, Gartner Dataquest named ADIC the world’s largest supplier of
automated tape systems using the drive technologies noted above.

Our automated tape libraries range in size from easy-to-use desk-top units suitable for a small office
to storage networking solutions that can protect the largest data center. A typical entry-level unit contains
one or two tape drives and up to 24 cartridges, whereas our large enterprise-class libraries can contain
up to hundreds of drives and thousands of cartridges. Many of our models designed for enterprise
applications are characterized by a high level of automation and intelligence. Our managed connectivity
technology helps the libraries improve the performance and reliability of backup in SANs, and our
innovative monitoring, alerting and diagnostic technology has been shown to reduce service calis,
shorten issue resolution time and reduce the time that end users spend managing their backup. We offer
several different scalability technologies, allowing users to expand the capacity of their libraries as their
data grows. Our advanced design for reliability increases users’ leve! of data protection by building in
component redundancy, automated failover and active monitoring and alerting functions.

Data Management Software

Our data management software provides automated, integrated management of data on different
platforms, operating systems and storage media types for IT departments managing a broad range of
enterprise-scale digital assets. Designed for open system computing environments, our software
solutions help icustomers get their products to market faster by providing shared, transparent access to
data for a wide variety of high-performance applications. End users include international leaders in
science and engineering applications, workflow management and rich media distribution via the
Internet and digital broadcast channels. Our data management software products provide a fully
integrated management system for an organization’s digital assets throughout the life cycle of the data.
ADIC software is developed to help IT departments get the maximum performance and utilization from
their storage résource investment regardless of the storage environment or media types that they use.
Currently, our data management software is used in more than 1,000 organizations worldwide to
manage some: of the industry’s largest and most challenging data storage environments.

Disk-Based Data Protection Solutions

In late 2003, we introduced the first in a series of integrated hardware solutions—the Pathlight®
series—that expanded our list of supported storage media by leveraging the recent availability of low-
cost ATA commodity disk products. The new disk technology has the potential to make data protection
more effective, but that effectiveness cannot be accomplished by commodity-level products alone. All
of our Pathlight series products use integrated disk storage resources as part of high value-added data
protection solutions. The products are designed to combine the disk resources with management
software, advanced connectivity technology and other hardware systems including tape storage
systems in a single, integrated data protection solution. The Pathlight series is designed to significantly
expand the range of integrated technologies in a way that leverages our core intellectual property and
that can be delivered and serviced by our existing channel partners, sales and marketing and technical
support structure.

Selected Products
The following products demonstrate innovative integration of several of our core technologies.

Scalar® i2000™ Automated Tape Library

The Scalar i2000, with its iPlatform™ architecture, represents the next generation of enterprise
tape library functionality and sets new industry standards. It uses ADIC connectivity, management and
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I/O controller technology to integrate and simplify key backup management functions, offering built-in
support for a broad range of data center requirements while reducing the need for external library
control servers, software and management activities. Functions integrated within the library include
native partitioning of a single library into multiple logical libraries, native Fibre Channel connectivity,
advanced performance monitoring, proactive system readiness checks, seif-guided diagnostics and
policy-based user alerts using standard email and pager networks. The iPlatform’s server-class
embedded controller displays real-time backup performance data and gathers information to be used
for future predictive analysis. The Scalar i2000 also incorporates a unique capacity-on-demand
capability, allowing users to expand capacity from 100 to over 2,200 cartridges, and only pay for added
capacity when they use it.

StorNext® Data Management Software™

Designed for data-intensive SAN environments, StorNext is policy-based data management
software that provides organizations with a foundation for information Lifecycle Management (ILM).
StorNext reduces the time and total cost of managing data for a broad class of end users faced with
the problem of large data sets and challenging distribution environments. It provides a comprehensive
storage solution by integrating two powerful components: StorNext File System™ (SNFS) and StorNext
Storage Manager™ (SNSM). SNFS provides shared access to data across different operating systems
and storage platforms, while SNSM provides automated movement of data between different tiers of
storage-based user-defined policies. The result is a scalable, high-performance data management
solution that is designed to optimize the use of SAN storage while ensuring the long-term safety and
recoverability of data.

Pathlight VX™ Disk-to-Tape Backup Solution

Pathlight VX is a backup and restore solution that integrates disk into the backup process while
allowing users to retain their investments in existing data protection products and procedures. Pathlight
VX integrates disk and tape into a combined solution. It leverages ATA disk technology to enhance
backup performance and give it RAID (Redundant Array of Independent Disk) fault tolerance, and it
uses the characteristics of tape technology to provide enterprise scalability, secure long-term data
retention and reduced costs. Pathlight VX's embedded policy-based management lets users apply
lifecycle management technology to their backup data for lower administrative costs and enhanced
data protection. Pathlight VX combines four of ADIC’s core technologies to deliver a complete solution.
ADIC's virtualization software presents disk to hosts as logical tape drives and media. ADIC's /O
controller technology provides high performance data flow to boost the speed of backup and recovery
operations. ADIC’s policy-based data management software technology automates the management of
data across disk and tape. ADIC’s intelligent tape library technology provides advanced, scalable tape
storage elements to provide a fully integrated solution.

Sales and Marketing

We deploy a comprehensive sales, marketing and support infrastructure to address our domestic
and international target markets. We rely on multiple channels to reach end-user customers, ranging in
size from small businesses to government agencies and large, multinational corporations. We remain
committed to upgrading our sales force to include team members with more technical expertise as well
as more experience selling higher-value solutions to enterprise-level hardware and software
customers. Our products are sold under both the ADIC brand name and under the names of various
OEM customers.

ADIC Branded Sales Channels

For our ADIC branded products we utilize value-added resellers (VARS), direct marketing resellers
and distributors, and we sell directly to certain large entities and governmental agencies. We maintain
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and operate a;sales force from our headquarters in Redmond, Washington, regional offices in Paris,
London and Munich, as well as numerous smaller field sales offices throughout North America, Europe
and Asia. Additionally, in June 2004 we entered into a reseller agreement with EMC Corporation
pursuant to which EMC sells ADIC-branded tape libraries.

A large portion of ADIC-branded products are sold in conjunction with VARs who work closely with
our sales force to sell our products to corporate and governmental customers. These enterprise-
focused VARs generally provide some level of pre- and post-sales support for the end-user customer.
Typically, the VARs specialize in providing data storage and networking solutions for end users with
large data centers that require higher levels of system architecture services. We primarily partner with
VARs for the sale of our larger, enterprise-class libraries including the Scalar i2000 and Scalar 10K,
and our ATA disk and standalone software solutions that leverage our proprietary technology.

We have relationships with a number of distributors who offer our products to local VAR or, in
some countries, directly to end users. We believe international markets represent an attractive growth
opportunity and intend to expand the scope of our international sales efforts by continuing to actively
pursue additional international distributors and resellers.

OEM Relationships

We sell our products to several companies under OEM relationships. OEMs generally resell our
products under their own brand name and typically assume responsibility for product sales, end user
service and support. These relationships enable us to reach end users not served by our direct sales
force or our other distribution channels. They also allow us to sell to select geographic or vertical
markets where specific OEMs have exceptional strength. We maintain ongoing discussions with
numerous OEMs, including leading systems suppliers, regarding opportunities for our products. Our
OEM relationships for hardware include Dell, Inc., Fujitsu-Siemens Computers, IBM Corporation and
Sun Microsystems, Inc. We primarily sell our entry-level, lower-margin products through our hardware
OEMs. Software OEMs include Cray, Hewlett-Packard Company and Grass Valley Group. For fiscal
2004, OEM sales represented 47% of our net sales. Total sales to Dell and IBM, which include OEM
sales as well as sales of ADIC branded product to these customers, totaled 24% and 21%,
respectively, of sales in fiscal 2004.

Our OEM relationships require a highly customized approach in terms of product identification,
logistics and service models. During the product development stage, each OEM typically requires
modificationsito the look and feel of the products they receive from us. This may be as simple as
requiring the OEM'’s unique industrial design on the exterior of the product, or as extensive as
customized firmware specific to an OEM’s product feature requirements. In certain cases, the OEM
does not require any change to the ADIC-branded product but we categorize the sale as an OEM sale
because the product is embedded in the OEM’s system sale and has the sales, service and support
characteristics typical of OEM business.

Fulfillment models vary, but generally require us to maintain an inventory of OEM product in third
party logistics centers near the OEM’'s manufacturing or distribution facility. In these relationships, we
generally maintain title to products until those products leave the third party logistics location. Service
support differs widely from one OEM to another. ADIC provides support ranging from repair and
replacement to 24-hour fast exchange to on site service support for our mid-range and enterprise-class
products.




End Users

End users of our products represent a wide variety of industries, including the technology, financial/
services, commercial/industrial and telecommunications/entertainment industries, and range from mid-size
businesses to Fortune 500 companies. The table below lists representative end users of our products:

Itm_og_y W Commercial/industrial Telecommunications/Entertainment
Cray Abbey National . 3M Health Information Systems Cingular Wireless (AT&T Wireless)
Dell Bank of China Albany international Corp. BT Group PLC
Fujitsu Siemens  CIT Group, Inc. BP Deutsche Telekom
Hewlett-Packard  Citibank CGG The Walt Disney Company
iBM Clifford Chance ChevronTexaco Corp. MCI
Microsoft Corio, Inc. Corporate Express Nokia
SAP Deutsche Bank DHL Sprint PCS
Siemens Ernst & Young Ford Motor Company T-Mobile
Sony Fidelity Investments Harley-Davidson Time Warner Inc.
Sun Microsystems JPMorgan Chase & Co. Johnson & Johnson Turner Broadcasting System
Yahoo! Knights of Columbus Maplnfo Corp. Verizon Communications
North American Health Plans Shell Western Wireless
PricewaterhouseCoopers Sony

End users of our products also include many government agencies. Our government sales teams
work primarily with four major categories of government including intelligence, defense, civilian and
state and local agencies. Specific government end users include the National Geospatial-Intelligence
Agency (NGA), Internal Revenue Sérvice (IRS), National Aeronautics and Space Administration
(NASA) and all armed services (Army, Navy, Air Force, Marines).

Global Services

Our comprehensive service strategy is an integral component of our total customer solution,
providing us with a competitive advantage through our support offerings and a predictable flow of
revenue and cash. In order to meet customer needs, the offerings of our global services group not only
include the standard activities needed to ensure successful selection and on-going support of products,
but are also directly coupled with meeting dynamic customer requirements and innovative product design
that can help minimize the need for conventional service. Additionally, we see the offerings of our global
services group as a significant purchase factor for customers considering data management and storage
solutions, which is why our ability to add value to the overall customer experience through our support
offerings is a significant competitive advantage. We also believe our ability to retain long-term customer
relationships and secure repeat business is frequently tied directly to our service performance.

Our global services infrastructure and technology investment continues to be a major priority, as we
scale to meet our expanding installed base. We are currently able to provide service in 180 countries,
supported by 24-hour, multi-language technical support centers located in North America and Europe. We
provide our customers with warranty coverage ranging from three months to three years on our products.
Customers with tapes, drives and disk used in our products, but manufactured by an outside party, are
provided with a warranty that is equivalent to the warranty of the original equipment manufacturer. Our
customers may also purchase additional service to extend the warranty period, obtain faster response
times, or both. We offer this additional support coverage at a variety of levels, up to 24-hour, seven-day-a-
week, 365-day-a-year response for customers with stringent high-availability needs.




Information Technology and Infrastructure

We continue to focus on further improving our internal business systems and global information
technology infrastructure. We have collaborated with several key business partners to integrate
business to business communication platforms into our technology infrastructure designed to increase
the efficiency of critical transactional processes. We have also developed additional on-line service
request help functionality to support our growing customer installed base. All of our key business
systems are integrated on a single platform designed to provide scalable processes and support of our
global functions. Recent initiatives include implementing an automated remote diagnostic service
platform to enhance customer service and a further synchronization of our global Enterprise Resource
Planning and Customer Relationship Management systems.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

We have manufacturing facilities in Colorado and Germany, operating under ISO 9001
certification. Our Scalar 1000™, Scalar i2000 and Scalar 10K™ tape libraries and our Pathlight VX disk-
based products are manufactured at our Colorado facility. Our highest-capacity large libraries are built
in our Germany facility. Our manufacturing strategy for these product lines is to perform product
assembly, integration and testing, leaving component and piece-part manufacturing to our strategic
suppliers. As a result of this manufacturing strategy, the cost of our compliance with environmental
laws does not ientail material capital expenditures.

In addition to our own manufacturing facilities, we also rely on third-party contract manufacturers
to build our entry-level to mid-range libraries, including our FastStor®, Scalar 24™ and Scalar 100™
product lines, as well as some of our management and connectivity appliances. In 2004, we continued
to expand our manufacturing relationship with Benchmark Electronics, Inc, who manufactures some of
our entry-level and mid-range product lines. We believe our strategy to outsource the manufacture of
our entry-level and mid-range products and our expanding relationship with Benchmark provides our
customers therhighest product quality at the lowest possible price to them and results in ongoing
operational improvements. We also depend on third-party manufacturers to supply us with magnetic
tape drives, optical disk drives and other storage devices that we incorporate into our products. We do
not have long-term purchase commitments with any of our significant suppliers.

We work closely with a group of regional, national and international suppliers to obtain parts and
components meeting our specifications. In some cases, specific versions of these components and
devices are customized and available only from a single source.

We carefully coordinate our inventory planning and management with our suppliers and customers
to match our production to market demand. Product orders are confirmed and, in most cases, shipped
to customers within one week. Larger libraries often have longer lead times and may include on-site
integration and customer acceptance. Since we fill the majority of our orders as they are received, we
do not believe our backiog levels are indicative of future sales.

Research and|/Development

Our research and development teams have developed multiple generations of ADIC’s storage
management products and platforms. it is our strategy to continue significant investment in research
and development to expand our product offerings and to continue innovating in existing product areas.
Our efforts depend on the integration of multiple engineering disciplines to generate products that
competitively meet or exceed market needs in a timely fashion. Our new product development is
frequently stimulated by the avaiiability of an enhanced or more cost-effective storage capacity device,
the emergence of new storage protocols and evolving end-user requirements. We are constantly
looking for alternative technologies that can be incorporated into our products and give us a
competitive advantage. We identify and define new products based on their ability to meet a perceived
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market need in a rapidly evolving field. Our sales, marketing, product development, engineering,
supply chain and global services organizations all contribute to the process of identifying and
implementing advances in technology.

Time and investment requirements for new product development tend to be significant, in terms of
hardware engineering, firmware engineering and the development of tooling for manufacturing.
Wherever feasible, we work toward developing software and hardware components that can be used
across multiple platforms. Examples of this in our product groups are the use of portions of our
StorNext software code in the Pathlight family of disk products and the leveraging of the storage
networking controller (SNC) connectivity products across the entire product line.

Our research and development expenses totaled $37.9 million, $40.6 million and $32.2 million for
fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In connection with certain business combinations, we have
recorded, and may in the future record, charges for acquired in-process research and development.
These charges represent acquired technology that has not reached technological feasibility and has no
alternative future use.

Competition

Our products compete in the market for open-systems data storage solutions. The market is’
characterized by rapidly changing technology, short product lifecycles, evolving standards and
aggressive pricing. Barriers to entry in the market are relatively low. Key competitive factors are
technology, performance, reliability, breadth of product line, distribution strength, product availability
and price, as well as customer service, including technical and sales support.

With respect to our tape automation products, we primarily compete for end user business with
IBM, Storage Technology Corporation, Hewlett-Packard and Quantum Corporation as well as indirectly
with companies such as BDT Products Inc., Overland Storage, Inc., NEC Corporation and several
others who supply or manufacture similar products under OEM or outsourcing relationships. Our tape
automation products and disk-based solutions also compete with disk-based storage and management
solutions sold by Hewlett-Packard, IBM, Sun Microsystems, EMC and Network Appliance, Inc.

Several of our competitors have greater financial, technical, manufacturing, marketing and other
resources than we have, and some of our competitors are also our customers and suppliers of
component tape and disk drive technologies incorporated into competing products. Competitors who
manufacture the drives may be able to leverage their access to and pricing of drives to improve the
competitive position of their products.

Aggressive competition in the market has resulted in price erosion in the past, and we expect our
products, as they mature, to face increasing pricing pressure.

Intellectual Property

We rely predominantly on our full product line, strong channel structure, library and software
development experience and global services offerings to compete in our marketplace. However, our
success also depends on our proprietary technology. We attempt to protect our technology through the
application of a combination of patent, copyright, trade secret and confidentiality means. We hold
patents on various elements of our products and we are pursuing numerous additional patent
applications. There can be no assurance that our intellectual property protection measures will be
sufficient to prevent misappropriation of our technology, and these measures may not preclude
competitors from independently developing products or technologies that are substantially equivalent
or superior to our products and technology. Our failure to protect our proprietary information could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
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In connection with our acquisition of EMASS, Inc. in August 1998 from Raytheon E-Systems, Inc., we
were granted a worldwide, royalty-free license under three patents owned by Raytheon relating to mass
data storage systems. We are aware that Raytheon commenced a lawsuit against a number of companies
in 2003 based on alleged infringement of one of these patents and that the cases have settled.

In May 2004, we signed an agreement with IBM to license part of IBM's tape automation
technology. We also executed a worldwide patent cross-licensing agreement with {BM covering our
respective patent portfolios in the area of storage.

Environmental Compliance

We are subject to federal, state, local and international environmental laws and regulations.
Compliance with these laws and regulations has not had a material effect on our capital expenditures,
earnings or competitive position.

Recently, however, the European Union finalized the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(WEEE) directive, which regulates the collection, recovery and recycling of waste from electrical and
electronic products, and the Restrictions on the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (RoHS) directive, which bans the use of certain hazardous materials including
lead, mercury, cadmium, chromium and halogenated flame-retardants. To comply with the WEEE
directive, we will be responsible for financing operations for the collection, treatment, disposal and
recycling of past and future covered products. To comply with the RoHS directive, we may need to
substantially alter product designs and/or find alternate suppliers for critical components used in those
products. Because the specific legal requirements have not been finalized and we have yet to fully
assess the ramifications to our products, we are presently unable to reasonably estimate the amount of
any costs or capital expenditures that may be necessary to comply with WEEE and RoHS. We cannot
provide any assurance that compliance with WEEE and RoHS will not have a material adverse effect
on our earnings or competitive position.

Team Members

As of October 31, 2004, we had 1,147 full-time team members, including 262 in sales and
marketing, 255 in engineering and research and development, 340 in global services (which includes
professional services, service operations, systems engineering and technical support) 180 in
manufacturing and operations and 110 in finance, general administration and management. In
November 2003, we transferred approximately 150 team members associated with manufacturing and
operations to Benchmark in connection with the expansion of an outsourced manufacturing relationship
with Benchmark. In June 2004, we further expanded this outsource relationship and transferred 42
team members associated with customer service and repair operations to Benchmark. None of our
North American team members is covered by collective bargaining agreements. We consider our
relations with our team members to be good.

Our future success depends on our ability to attract and retain key team members. Competition for
highly skilled technical, sales and management personnel is intense. In the future we may not be
successful in retaining our existing team members or in attracting additional qualified team members.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.adic.com. There we make available, free of charge, our annual report
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to
those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or
furnish it to, the SEC. Our SEC reports can be accessed through the Investors section of our web site.
Our Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics, which applies to our team members, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is also available on our web site. The information found
on our web sité is not part of this or any other report we file with or furnish to the SEC.
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RISK FACTORS

This report contains forward-looking statements. There are many factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those projected by the forward-looking statements made in this report.
Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, the risk factors described
below. We do not undertake any obligation to publicly release the result of any revisions to the forward-
looking statements contained in this report that may be made to reflect events or circumstances after
the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

We May Be Materially Affected By Global Economic and Political Conditions. In recent periods,
adverse economic conditions in the United States and throughout the world economy adversely affected
our sales levels. Again in 2004, we experienced lower than anticipated sales volumes, which we attribute
in part to general economic uncertainties and resource constraints of our customers due fo the
implementation of many new regulatory requirements, including the internal financial controls
requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. if general economic conditions fail to
improve or continue to worsen, we may experience a material adverse impact on our revenues, operating
results and financial condition. A prolonged continuation or worsening of adverse economic conditions
may require us to re-evaluate our strategy of investing in research and development and sales and
marketing, or to take other actions to reduce the cost of sales and operating expenses in future periods.
Any such future actions could result in special charges or adversely affect our long-term competitive
position. Further, we may be unable to reduce the cost of sales and operating expenses at a rate and
level consistent with such future adverse sales environment, which would have an adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. Unstable giobal political conditions may also materially affect
our financial condition and results of operations. Terrorist attacks or acts of war could disrupt our
operations significantly as well as the operations of our customers, suppliers and sales channels.

Our Financial Results May Be Materially Affected By Our Strategy to Grow from a Company
Primarily Focused on Tape Library Technologies to One Able to Sell and Support Software, Disk and
Advanced Tape-Based Solutions. The market for data storage solutions, including automated tape
libraries, disk-based data protection solutions and storage management software, is intensely
competitive and characterized by rapidly changing technology and evolving standards. To succeed in
this market, we believe that we must continue our strategy of developing storage sofutions and
products of increasing technical sophistication, including software and disk-based products, and
enhance our capacity to support and market more advanced solutions. As part of this strategy, we
dramatically ramped up our research and development during the past several years, although in fiscal
2004, research and development decreased moderately primarily due to the timing of new product
introductions and lower incentive compensation expense. in fiscal 2004 we continued a steep increase
in sales and marketing expenses to increase the skill of our internal sales force and reach of our
branded sales channels. In addition, we have allowed for a reduction in sales of low-margin, entry-level
OEM products. We expect to focus our efforts to replace such entry-level sales with sales of higher-
margin, enterprise class branded and OEM products that yield a higher gross margin percentage. We
are beginning to see signs of success of this strategy; however, we cannot predict how long it will take
to implement our strategy, and we cannot provide assurance that we will execute our strategy
successfully or that our strategy will provide us with a competitive advantage in the market for data
storage solutions.

Our Quarterly Revenues and Operating Results May Fluctuate for a Number of Reasons. Our
quarterly operating results have varied in the past and are likely to vary significantly in the future due to
several factors, including:

» general economic conditions affecting enterprise spending for information technology;

» increased number and diversity of available data back-up and archive storage alternatives
resulting in delays to customer decision-making cycles;
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» size and timing of significant customer orders;
» shiftsiin product or distribution channel mix;

» increased competition and pricing pressure, timing of new product announcements and
releases by us or our competitors;

* new product developments by storage device manufacturers, including cost and performance
of ATA disk drive products;

+ recognition of losses or gains from our strategic and other equity investments;
» the rate of growth in the data storage market;

+ market acceptance of new and enhanced versions of our products;

. perfoﬁmance of key suppliers and availability of key components;

+ timing and levels of our operating expenses;

* gain or loss of significant customers; and

» currency fluctuations and variations in effective tax rates.

Operating results in any period should not be considered indicative of the results investors can
expect for any future period. We cannot assure you that past quarterly results will be indicative of -
future results or that we will be profitable in any future period. Any unfavorable change in the factors
described above or any other factors could adversely affect our operating results for a particular
quarter.

Our Quarterly Revenue and Operating Results May Be Affected By Seasonal Trends. We may
experience seasonal trends in our branded sales and OEM sales. Our seasonal trends can result in
lower branded revenue in the first quarter of each fiscal year compared to the fourth quarter of the
previous fiscal year due to customer purchasing and budgetary practices and our sales commission
and budgetary structure. By contrast, OEM sales can be quite strong during the first quarter of our
fiscal year, as'several of our OEM partners complete their fiscal year during our first quarter, and then
may decline in the second quarter of our fiscal year. These seasonal trends in branded and OEM sales
have not been very predictable in recent years.

Because We Operate with Little Backiog, Our Operating Results Could Be Adversely Affected If
We Do Not Accurately Anticipate Future Sales Levels. Historically, we have operated with little order
backlog and, due to the nature of our business, we do not anticipate having significant backlog in the
future. Consequently, a large portion of our revenue in each quarter results from orders placed during
that quarter. Because of the relatively large dollar size of orders from our OEMs and our concentrated
customer base for ADIC-branded products, delay in the placing of a small number of orders by a smali
number of purchasers could negatively affect our operating results for a particular period. Our
operating expense levels are, in the short term, largely fixed and are based, in part, on expectations
regarding future revenue. Thus, our operating results could be disproportionately affected if we do not
receive the expected number of orders in a given quarter and our revenue falls below our expectations.

Competition in the Open Systemns Storage Solutions Market May Lead to Reduced Market Share
and Adversely Affect Our Revenues. The market for open-systems data storage solutions is intensely
competitive and characterized by rapidly changing technology, short product cycles, evolving
standards and aggressive pricing. These conditions could render our products less competitive or
obsolete and could harm our business, financial condition and ability to market our products as
currently contemplated. Because we offer and are developing a broad range of open-systems storage
solutions, including automated tape libraries, disk-based data protection solutions and software, our
competitors differ depending on the product format and performance level (e.g., entry-level, mid-range
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or enterprise class). Several of our competitors have greater financial, technical, manufacturing,
marketing and other resources than we have. As a result, our competitors may be able to respond
more quickly than we can to new or changing opportunities, technologies, standards or customer
requirements. Competitors may develop products and technologies that are less expensive or
technologically superior to our products. In addition, our competitors may manufacture and market their
products more successfully than we do our products.

Our Products, Especially Our Smaller Automated Libraries, Face Pricing Pressure That Could
Result in Declining Prices and Reduced Profits. There is significant price competition in the markets
in which we compete, especially in the market for our entry-level automated libraries, and we believe
that pricing pressures are likely to continue. Some competitors may reduce prices in order to preserve
or gain market share. In addition, certain competitors are alsc manufacturers of tape drives and may
be able to leverage their access to and pricing of drives to improve their competitive position. To
successfully compete in this market, we must be able to manage our component and product design
costs. This pricing pressure, and our potential inability to manage our component and product design
costs, could result in significant price erosion, reduced gross profit margins and loss of market share,
which could negatively affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

The Storage Device Market is Characterized By Rapid Technological Evolution, and Our Success
Depends on Our Ability to Develop New Products. The market for our products is characterized by
rapidly changing technology and evolving industry standards and is highly competitive with respect to
timely innovation. At this time, the data storage market is particularly subject to change with the
emergence of new communication protocols and other new storage technologies and solutions, as well
as the introduction of products and technologies that provide similar functionality to existing products
and technologies but at dramatically reduced cost points. The introduction of new products embodying
new or alternative technology or the emergence of new industry standards could render our existing
products obsolete or unmarketable. Our future success will depend in part on our ability to anticipate
changes in technology, to gain access to such technology for incorporation into our products and to
develop new and enhanced products on a timely and cost-effective basis. For example, our recently
introduced Pathlight family of disk-based data protection solutions utilizes ATA disk technology, which
itself has only recently become generally available. Risks inherent in the development and introduction
of new products include:

» delay in our development and initial shipments of new products;
» the difficulty in forecasting customer demand accurately;
+ our inability to expand production capacity fast enough to meet customer demand;

+ the possibility that our key suppliers will be unable to deliver new technologies in production
volumes;

+ the possibility that new products may cannibalize our current products;
» competitors’' responses to our introduction of new products; and

+ the desire by customers to evaluate new products for longer periods of time before making a
purchase decision.

In addition, we must be able to maintain the compatibility of our products with significant future
device technologies, and we must rely on producers of new device technologies to achieve and sustain
market acceptance of those technologies. Development schedules for high-technology products are
subject to uncertainty, and we may not meet our product development schedules. If we are unabile, for
technological or other reasons, to develop products in a timely manner or if the products or product
enhancements that we develop do not achieve market acceptance, our business will be harmed.
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Our Increased Research and Development Spending May Not Yield Results That Justify the Costs
Incurred. In recent fiscal years we have substantially increased our research and development
spending over that of prior periods. We expect to continue significant investment in research and
developmentifor the development of new, more technologically advanced products and enhancements
of our current product lines. The market for data storage solutions and products is rapidly evolving, and
we cannot be assured that these efforts and investments will successfully provide us with new or
upgraded products that will be competitive. If these programs are not successful, our increased
investment in:research and development will not yield corresponding benefits to us.

We Rely on Tape Technology for a Substantial Portion of Qur Revenue. We derive a significant
maijority of our revenue from products that incorporate some form of tape technology, including linear
tape open, orLTO, and digital linear tape, or DLT/SDLT, and we expect to continue to derive a
substantial amount of revenue from these products for the foreseeable future. As a result, our future
operating results significantly depend on the continued availability and market acceptance of products
employing tape drive technology. Tape products have a competitive advantage over disk-based storage
on the basis of price. The price of disk storage continues to decrease rapidly, however, due to increased
competition and lower costs resulting from new disk drive technologies such as ATA disk. If products.
incorporating disk or other technologies gain comparable or superior market acceptance and competitive
price advantage, our business, financial condition and operating results would be adversely affected
unless we successfully develop and market products incorporating the new technology.

We Depend on Certain Key Suppliers for Parts, Components and Storage Capacity Technologies;
Some of Our Suppliers Are Also Our Competitors. We rely on a limited number of third-party
manufactures to supply us with parts and components used in our products. We do not possess
proprietary magnetic tape drive, optical disk, high-density disk or other storage capacity technologies
incorporated into our products and also must rely a limited number of third-party suppliers for those
devices. In many cases, specific versions of storage capacity devices are available only from a single
manufacturer. Some of our sole-source suppliers of storage capacity devices market their own data
storage products that compete with ours and are, thus, also our competitors. They may be able to
leverage their low-cost access to the components to price their products more competitively than ours.
At certain times, manufacturers of storage capacity technologies have been unable to meet demand for
their products and have had to allocate quantities of devices among their customers. It is possible that,
in the future, a drive or other device technology we incorporate into our products will be subject to
allocation or that we will otherwise be unable to obtain it in the quantities we desire, which would
adversely affect our ability to manufacture and sell products incorporating that drive or technology. We
do not have long-term contracts with any of our significant suppliers. The partial or complete loss of
any of our suppliers could result in significant lost revenue, added costs and production delays or may
otherwise harm our business, financial condition, operating results and customer relationships.

We Depend on Contract Manufacturers For Certain Products and Components. We are
increasing our:reliance on third party contract manufacturers. We currently utilize contract
manufacturers: to manufacture our entry-level and workgroup tape automatian library products and
some of our management and connectivity products, as well as various components and
sub-assembilies of virtually all of our products. Our contract manufacturers and component suppliers
have in the past been, and may in the future be, unable to meet our supply needs, including our needs
for timely delivery, high quality and adequate quantity. As a result of our increased reliance on contract
manufacturers, we may not be able to be as flexible as we have been in the past in responding to
specific quantity, feature and other requests from our OEM partners and other customers. Further,
some of our suppliers have experienced financial difficulties. If component shortages occur, or if we
experience quality problems with contract manufacturers or component suppliers, shipments of
products could:be significantly delayed or costs significantly increased, and as a result, our revenues
and operating results could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, we utilize only a single
source for many components and sub-assemblies, which magnifies the risk of future shortages.
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Although our agreements with our contract manufacturers do not typically include minimum volume
commitments or exclusivity provisions, as a practical matter it is frequently very disruptive and time
consuming to change suppliers, and therefore our business, financial condition, operating results and
customer relationships could be materially adversely affected if any of our significant suppliers failed to
meet our supply requirements.

We Rely Heavily on our Manufacturing Facility in Englewood, Colorado, Therefore, an Interruption
of Business at the Facility Could Have Material Adverse Consequences on our Financial Results. All
of our Scalar 1000, Scalar i2000 and Scalar 10K tape libraries and our Pathlight VX disk-based
products are manufactured at our leased facility in Englewood, Colorado. If this facility becomes
incapable of manufacturing products for any reason, we may be unable to fulfill orders, and we may
lose revenue and customers. We carry business interruption insurance on the facility to cover lost
revenue and profits for up to three months of downtime. This insurance, however, would not cover all
possible situations affecting operation of the facility nor would it cover all out-of-pocket expenses for
repairs necessary to resume operations. In addition, our business interruption insurance would not
compensate us for the loss of opportunity and potential adverse impact on relations with our existing
customers resulting from our inability to produce products for them in a timely manner.

We Rely Heavily on Indirect Sales Channels to Market and Sell Our Branded Products; Therefore,
the Loss of or Deterioration in our Relationship with One or More of our Resellers or Distributors Could
Negatively Affect Our Operating Results. We sell the majority of our branded products to value-added
resellers, or VARSs, and to direct marketing resellers such as CDW Corporation, who in turn sell our
products to end users. For the small and mid-range libraries, VARs may purchase our products from
large distributors such as Ingram Micro, Tech Data and others. In June 2004, we announced a hew
reseller agreement with EMC, under which EMC resells our branded tape automation products. The
incremental success of new sales channels is hard to predict and may cannibalize current sales
channels. There are no purchase commitments or iong-term orders with any of our significant resellers.
Generally, we sell products pursuant to purchase orders. Several of our resellers carry competing
product lines that they may promote over our products. A reseller might not continue to purchase our
products or market them effectively, and each reseller determines the type and amount of our products
that it will purchase from us and the pricing of the products that it sells to end-user customers. Certain
of our contracts with our distributors contain “most favored nation” pricing provisions mandating that we
offer our products to these customers at the lowest price offered to other similarly situated customers.
In addition, sales of our enterprise-class libraries, and the revenue associated with the on-site service
of those libraries, are somewhat concentrated in specific customers, including government agencies
and government-related companies. Our operating results could be adversely affected if any of the
following factors were to occur relating to one or more of our significant reselflers:

« the reduction, delay or cancellation of orders or the return of a significant amount of products;

+ the loss of one or more of such resellers; or

+ any financial difficulties of such resellers that result in their inability to pay amounts owed to us.

We Expect to Continue Significant Focus on OEM Sales and Could Be Adversely Affected if Our
OEM Sales Efforts Are Not Successful. We rely on OEMs such as Cray, Dell, Fujitsu-Siemens,
Hewlett-Packard, IBM and Sun Microsystems to sell our products under the OEM's brand. For fiscal
2004, OEM sales represented 47% of our net sales. Total sales to Dell and IBM, which include OEM
sales as well as sale of ADIC branded product to these customers, were 24% and 21%, respectively,
of our sales in fiscal 2004. OEMs typically conduct substantial and lengthy evaluation programs before
certifying a new product for inclusion in their product line. We may be required to devote significant
amounts of financial and human resources to these evaluation programs with no assurance that our
products will ever be selected. In addition, even if selected by the OEM, there generally is no
requirement that the OEM will purchase any particular amount of product or that it wilt refrain from
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purchasing competing products. We do not have purchase commitments from our OEMs, and a
reduction in the level of sales from this channel could significantly impact revenue. Further, OEM sales
typically feature lower profit margins than we have obtained in the past through our other distribution
channels. If any of the OEMs decide not to continue to purchase our products, our business, financial
condition and operating results may be harmed. ‘

We May Not Realize Returns on Our Investments in Sales and Marketing. In recent periods we
have increased our spending on sales and marketing in both the U.S. and in our European and other
international markets as part of our strategy to expand our sales and service channels to support new
product offerings and improve market penetration with our more complex enterprise-level hardware
products andiwith our software products. Our focus on increasing sales of these more complex
hardware and software products has required us to upgrade our sales force to include team members
with more technical expertise as well as more experience selling to this level of customer. Further, the
sales of these more complex hardware and software products to large enterprises tend to have a
longer sales cycle than sales of our mid-range and entry-level products. If our strategy of investing in
this sales channel does not yield results through greater penetration of this large enterprise target
market and through increased software sales, our business and results of operations will be adversely
affected.

Our Operating Results Would Be Adversely Affected by a Significant Amount of Product
Returns. QOur customers have rights in certain instances to return products to us, and we may
otherwise allow product returns if we think that doing so is'in the interest of maximizing the
effectiveness of our sales channels. We estimate and reserve for potential returns in our reported
financial results. Actual returns could exceed the level of our estimates due to new product
introductions or other changes affecting the market for our products. If returns are made at levels that
exceed our estimates, our financial results could be adversely affected in the periods of these returns.

We May Make Acquisitions That Are Not Successful. We have in the past acquired businesses,
and we may do so in the future. Acquisitions present a number of risks, including:

+ our ability to successfully integrate the acquired entity’s operations, technologies and products
with our own;

+ our ability to retain key customers and personnel; '

+ our ability to manage a larger and more diverse business, a portion of which may be in
markets where we have no or limited prior experience;

* unanticipated costs associated with the integration of the acquired entity into our business;

« diversion of management’s attention from our core business during the acquisition and
integration process;

« potential adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers; and
» charges and write-offs incurred in connection with acquisitions.

Additionally, we expect that the consideration paid for future acquisitions, if any, could be in the
form of cash, stock, assumption of indebtedness and/or rights to purchase stock. Dilution to existing
shareholders and to earnings per share may result to the extent that shares of stock or other rights to
purchase stock are issued in connection with any such future acquisitions. Dilution may occur if the
earnings from such acquisitions do not exceed associated interest and other charges. We may also
incur charges from the completion of acquisitions, such as the expense of in-process research and
development or severance or other charges arising from the integration of the businesses.

We May Not Be Able to Effectively Manage Any Future Growth. We have experjenced rapid
growth in the past and anticipate continued growth in the future. This growth has resulted in; and may
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possibly create in the future, additional capacity requirements, new and increased responsibilities for
management personnel, the need to hire additional personnel, the need to open new offices in other
international locations.and added pressures on our operating and financial systems. Our facilities,
personnel and operating and global information systems may not be sufficient to manage and sustain
our future growth, and additional growth may detract from our ability to respond to new opportunities
and challenges quickly. If we are unable to manage growth effectively, our business, financial condition
and operating results could be materially negatively affected. in addition, to the extent expected
revenue growth does not materialize, increases in our operating expenditures that are based on
anticipated revenue growth could harm our financial results.

Risks Associated with International Operations May Adversely Affect Our Business. We have
significant sales to customers outside the United States and believe that international sales will
continue to represent a large portion of our net sales. In addition, we have used in the past and expect
to continue to use in the future, contractors outside the U.S. for certain product development and
manufacturing work. Our international operations, product development, manufacturing and our sales
to customers outside the United States subject us to a number of risks, including:

+ the need to comply with a wide variety of foreign laws and regulations, as well as U.S. export
and import laws;

* political and economic instability in certain international markets;

« longer payment cycles. typically associated with international sales and potential difficulties in
collecting accounts receivable;

+ changes in tariffs and tax laws;
+ greater difficulty of administering business overseas;
-+ the need to support multiple languages;

» difficulty recruiting sales and technical support personnel with the skills to support our
products;

+ unpredictability of foreign regulations;
« difficulty oflobtaining export licenses; and

+ potential severance exposure related to employment agreements with our European
personnel.

Furthermdre, although we endeavor to meet standards established by foreign regulatory bodies,
we may not be able to comply with changes in foreign standards in the future. Our inability to design
products to comply with foreign standards could harm our business, financial condition and operating
results.

We May Be Sued By Our Customers for Product Liability Claims as a Resuilt of Failures in Our
Data Storage Products. We face potential liability for performance problems of our products because
our end users employ our storage technologies for the storage and backup of important data and to
satisfy regulatory requirements. Although we maintain general liability insurance, our insurance may
not cover potential claims of this type or may not be adequate to indemnify us for all liability that may
be imposed. Any imposition of liability that is not covered by insurance or is in excess of our insurance
coverage could harm our business.

We May Face Liability Associated with the Use of Products and Processes on Which Patent
Ownership or Other Intellectual Property Rights Are Claimed. While ADIC is not currently directly
involved in any intellectual property litigation or proceedings, we may become involved in intellectual
property litigation or proceedings in the future. We are now, and we may in the future be, subject to
claims or inquiries regarding our alleged unauthorized use of a third party’s intellectual property. For
example, in 2001 we settled litigation that Crossroads Systems, Inc. had filed against Pathlight prior to
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our acquisition, relating to infringement of Crossroads’ patent by certain products sold by Pathlight. An
adverse outcome in any intellectual property litigation could subject us to significant liabilities to third
parties, require us to license technology from others or require us to cease marketing or using certain
products, any of which could negatively affect our business, financial condition and operating results. If
we are required to seek licenses under patents or proprietary rights of others, we may not be able to
acquire these licenses on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, the cost of responding to an
intellectual property infringement claim, in terms of legal fees and expenses and the diversion of
management resources, whether or not the claim is valid, could harm our business, financial condition
and operating resuits.

In addition, certain products or technologies acguired or developed by us may include so-called
“open source” software. Open source software is typically licensed for use at no initial charge. Certain
open source software licenses, however, require users of the open source software to license to others
any software that is based on, incorporates or interacts with, the open source software under the terms
of the open source license. This aspect could adversely impact our competitive position and financial
results by providing our competitors with access to sensitive information that may help them develop
competitive products. In addition, our use of open source software may harm our business and subject
us to intellectual property claims, litigation or proceedings in the future because:

* open source license terms may be ambiguous and may result in us being subject to
unanticipated obligations regarding our products, technologies and intellectual property; -

» open source software generally cannot be protected under trade secret law; and

» it may be difficult for us to accurately determine the origin of the open source code and
whether the open source software infringes, misappropriates or violates third party inteliectual
property or other rights.

Fluctuating Foreign Currency Valuations May Adversely Impact Our Profitability. Currently,
approximately'54% of our total international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, and fluctuations in
the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar could therefore make our products less price
competitive. The remaining portion of our international sales are denominated in foreign currencies,
primarily the euro and the British pound sterling. A decrease in the value of a relevant foreign currency
in relation to the U.S. dollar after establishing prices and before our receipt of payment and conversion
of such payment to U.S. dollars would have an adverse effect on our operating results. Furthermore,
the expenses of our international subsidiaries are denominated in their local currencies. Because we
currently engage in only limited foreign currency hedging transactions, our operating results could be
adversely affected by movement in foreign currency exchange rates.

A Number. of Key Personnel Are Critical to the Success of Our Business. Our future success
depends in large part on our ability to retain certain key executives and other personnel, some of whom
have been instrumental in establishing and maintaining strategic relationships with key suppliers and
customers. We do not have any employment agreements with our U.S. employees, except for change
of control agreements with our officers and agreements with a few other personnel related to expatriate
assignments. OQur future growth and success will depend in large part on our ability to hire, motivate
and retain highly qualified management, technical, operations and sales and marketing personnel. We
may not be able to retain our existing personnel or attract additional qualified personnel in the future. In
addition, companies in our industry whose employees accept positions with competitors frequently
claim that the competitors have engaged in unfair hiring practices. We may receive such claims in the
future as we seek to hire qualified personnel, and such claims could result in litigation. We also
periodically have other employment-related claims asserted against us. Regardless of the merits of any
of these claims; we could incur substantial costs in defending ourselves against these claims.

A Failure to Develop and Maintain Proprietary Technology Will Negatively Affect Our
Business. Because our business depends on technology, our ability to compete effectively depends
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in part on our ability to develop and maintain proprietary aspects of our technology. We hold patents on
various elements of our storage solution products in the United States and a few international
jurisdictions, and we are pursuing additional patent applications. We cannot be certain, however, that
we will receive any future patents or that any patents we do receive will be valid or provide meaningful
protection for our product innovations. We also rely on a combination of copyright, trademark, trade
secret and other intellectual property laws and various contract rights to protect our proprietary rights.
Such rights, however, may not preclude competitors from developing products that are substantiaily
equivalent or superior to our products. In addition, many aspects of our products are not subject to
intellectual property protection and can therefore be reproduced by our competitors.

Undetected Software or Hardware Errors Could Increase Our Costs and Reduce Our
Revenue. Many of our products are technologically complex and incorporate rapidly developing
technologies, and we may not be able to adequately control and eliminate design and manufacturing
flaws. Our products operate near the limits of electronic and physical performance and are designed and
manufactured with relatively small tolerances. If flaws in design, production, assembly or testing were to
occur in our products or those of our vendors, we couid experience a rate of failure in our products that
would result in substantial repair or replacement costs and potential damage to our reputation. Continued
improvement in manufacturing capabilities and control of material and manufacturing quality and costs
are critical factors in our future growth. We frequently revise and update manufacturing and test
processes to address engineering and component changes to our products and evaluate the reallocation
of manufacturing resources among our facilities. We can make no assurance that our efforts to monitor,
develop and implement appropriate test and manufacturing processes for our products will be sufficient to
permit us to avoid a rate of failure in our products that results in substantial shipment delays, significant
repair or replacement costs and damage to our reputation.

Because Our Products are Utilized in Complex Network Environments, it May be Difficult to
Identify and Resolve Problems. Qur products are often combined with products from other vendors
and are frequently installed in complex network environments. As a result, when problems occur, it is
difficult to identify the source of the problem. Problems caused by other network components may
appear to be a malfunction of one of our products. These problems may cause us to incur significant
warranty and repair costs, divert the attention of our engineering personnel from our product
development efforts and cause significant customer relations problems.

We Face Substantial Warranty Exposure. We generally provide product warranties for varying
lengths of time. In the past, we have incurred higher warranty expenses relating to new products than
we typically incur with estabiished products. In anticipation of such expenses, we establish allowances
for the estimated liability associated with product warranties. However, these warranty allowances may
be inadequate, and we may incur substantial warranty expenses in the future with respect to new or
established products.

We Face Exposure Under Service Level Agreements. We are entering into an increasing
number of service contracts with our customers that define specific periods of time during which we
must respond to a service call, which sometimes are as short as two or four hours. We may incur more
costs than anticipated as a resuit of these service level commitments. Further, any failure to meet our
service level commitments may negatively affect our relationships with key customers and could result
in liabilities that materially adversely affect our operating results.

Investments in Equity Securities May be Subject to Write-Downs in the Future.  We hold equity
interests in private companies having operations or technology in areas within our strategic focus and
limited partnership interests in private technology venture limited partnerships. Our equity interests in
private companies are accounted for on a cost basis and are adjusted for other than temporary
impairments. These investments are speculative in nature and can become valueless if the companies
we invest in are not able to profitably achieve their business plans or if they are not able to obtain
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adequate funding to do so. We have in the past and may in the future incur impairment losses on our
current investrments or investments that we may make in the future, which would have an adverse
effect on ouriprofitability and financial condition. For our interests in private technology venture limited
partnerships, which we initially accounted for under the cost method and now account for under the
equity method (see Note 2 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information), we
record equity investment gains or losses equal to our pro rata share of the limited partnership’s income
or loss. To date, we have recorded approximately $1.6 million in net losses on these partnership
interests, and we may in the future record further losses on these interests or others that we obtain in
the future, which would have an adverse effect on our profitability and financial condition. Additionally,
these losses jare primarily based on the general partner’s estimates of the fair value of non-marketable
securities held by the partnership and are subject to the inherent uncertainty associated with the
valuation of securities for which there is no public market.

We Have Antitakeover Provisions in Place That Make It More Difficult for a Third Party fo Acquire
Us. Our board of directors has the authority, without any action by the shareholders, to issue up to
4,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to fix the rights and preferences of such shares. In addition,
we have adopted a shareholder rights plan involving the issuance of preferred stock purchase rights
designed to protect our shareholders from abusive takeover tactics by causing substantial dilution to a
person or group that attempts to acquire us on terms not approved by our board. Certain provisions in
our articles of incorporation, bylaws, certain third-party contracts and shareholder rights plan, as well
as Washington law, and the ability of our board to issue preferred stock, may have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control, may discourage bids for our common stock at a
premium over its market price and may adversely affect the market price and the voting and other
rights of the holders of common stock.

Our Stock Price May Be Extremely Volatile. The market price of our common stock has been
volatile in the past, and it is likely to continue to fluctuate significantly in the future. Our stock price can
fluctuate for a number of reasons, including:

» quarterly variations in operating results, especiaily if they differ from our previously announced
forecasts or forecasts made by analysts;

« our announcements of anticipated future revenues or operating results;
+ announcements about us or our competitors;
+ the introduction of new technology or products by us or our competitors;

+ comments regarding us and the data storage market made by industry analysts or on Internet
bulletin boards; and

+ changes in earnings estimates by analysts or changes in accounting policies.

We May be Materially Affected by the WEEE and RoHS Directives. The European Union has
finalized the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) directive, which regulates the collection,
recovery and recycling of waste from electrical and electronic products, and the Restrictions on the Use of
Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment (RoHS) directive, which bans the use
of certain hazardous materials including lead, mercury, cadmium, chromium and halogenated flame-
retardants. In grder to comply with the WEEE directive, we will be responsible for financing operations for
the collection, treatment, disposal and recycling of past and future covered products. In order to comply with
the RoHS directive, we may need to substantially alter product designs and/or find alternate suppliers for
critical components used in those products. Because the specific legal requirements have not been finalized
and we have yet to fully assess the ramifications to our products, we are presently unable to reasonably
estimate the armount of any costs that may be necessary in order to comply with WEEE and RoHS. We
cannot providelany assurance that compliance with WEEE and RoHS will not have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
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We May be Unable to Timely Comply with the Requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act Relating
to the Assessment by Us and Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of the Effectiveness
of Our Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting, Which Could Adversely Affect Our Business. The
SEC, as directed by Section 404 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act, adopted rules generally requiring each
public company to include a report of an assessment by management of the effectiveness of the
company'’s internal control over financial reporting. In addition, the company’s independent registered
public accounting firm must attest to and report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control over financial reporting. This requirement will first apply to our annual
report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending October 31, 2005. We are evaluating our internal control
systems to allow our management to report on, and our independent registered public accounting firm
to attest to, our internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404. As a result, we
have incurred additional expenses and a diversion of our management’s time, and we expect this to
continue into fiscal year 2005.

While we have dedicated a significant amount of fime and resources to ensuring compliance, there
can be no assurance that we or our independent registered public accounting firm will complete the
necessary work to comply with all aspects of Section 404 in a timely manner. If we or our independent
registered public accounting firm determine that we have a material weakness in our internal control
over financial reporting, we may be unable to prevent or detect material misstatements in a timely
manner. For example, in connection with the audit of our financial statements as of and for the year
ended October 31, 2004, we identified a deficiency in our internal controls that our independent
registered public accounting firm considered to be a material weakness. This matter and the measures
we have commenced to remediate the deficiency are discussed in detail in this report under Item 9A.,
“Controls and Procedures.” Any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties
encountered in their implementation, could harm our operating results or cause us to fail to meet our
reporting obligations. Disclosure of a material weakness could reduce the market's confidence in our
financial statements and affect our stock price.

ltem 2. Properties

We lease a facility in Redmond, Washington of approximately 65,000 square feet to house our
corporate headquarters and our primary marketing, sales, research and development and globai
services organizations. Additionally, we lease two facilities located in Englewood, Colorado. The larger
facility, of 148,000 square feet, is used for research and development, manufacturing operations and
additional service operations. In early fiscal 2002, as a result of our move to the larger facility, we
vacated a portion of the other 86,000 square foot Englewood facility. The lease on the vacated facility
expires in December 2006. We also own a facility in Germany where we manufacture some of our
large libraries and perform service operations. We lease facilities for research and development in the
following locations: Ithaca, New York; Santa Clara, California; Richardson, Texas; and Burnsville,
Minnesota. We lease additional facilities throughout the United States, Asia and Europe for our
regional sales offices and customer service and support personnel.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings that arise in the
ordinary course of business. At this time, we are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation
against us that we expect will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
liquidity or operating results. Legal claims are inherently uncertain, however. We cannot assure you
that we will not be adversely affected in the future by legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2004.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “ADIC.” As of
December 15, 2004, there were approximately 414 shareholders of record. The following table shows
the high and low sales prices for our common stock for the periods indicated, as reported by the
Nasdaq National Market. ‘

High Low

Fiscal Year 2004: '

Tt QUAMET . .t $19.790 $12.150

20 QAN BT . . . oo $18.390 $10.370

B QUANET ..ottt e $10.880 $ 7.500

A QUANET ... e $10.100 $ 8.280
Fiscal Year 2003: ’

Tt QUARET . .o $ 9100 $ 5.660

2N QUANEr . .. ot $ 8150 $ 5.700

B QUaNEr . ... $11.760 $ 7.930

A QUAMEE . ..t $17.990 $ 9.850

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock during the past two fiscal years, and it
is not anticipated that cash dividends will be paid on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable
future. :

In May 2002, our board of directors announced a stock repurchase program, and in May 2004, the
number of total shares available for repurchase was increased to an additional 5,000,000 shares
above the 1,406,900 that had previously been repurchased under the program. The repurchase
program permits open market purchases from time to time and remains in effect until the total
authorized number of shares have been repurchased or until earlier termination by the board of
directors. As of October 31, 2004, a total of 3,989,607 shares remained available for repurchase.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

In the table below, we provide our selected historical consolidated financial data. We have
prepared this information using our consolidated financial statements for the five years ended October
31, 2004. The information below for the years ended October 31, 2001 and 2000 includes the results of
Pathlight Technology, Inc., which was acquired May 11, 2001, for the entire period because it was a
business combination accounted for as a pooling-of-interests. It is important to read this selected
historical consolidated financial data along with our historical annual financial statements and related
notes included in this report, as well as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.” Amounts presented for the years ended October 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
have been restated. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information (in
thousands, except for per share data).

Fiscal Years Ended October 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Restated)(1)
Consolidated Statements of
Operations:

Netsales............................ $454,819 $423,998 $337,599 $364,681 $290,296
Costofsales......................... 325,588 292,121 245,832 258,893 183,717
Pathlight acquisitioncosts .............. — — — 4,109 —

Grossprofit ...................... 129,231 131,877 91,767 101,679 106,579
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing .............. 64,836 57,777 48,307 43,704 39,204

General and administrative ......... 24,242 24,015 23,172 19,960 15,411

Research and development . . ... .... 37,925 40,609 32,230 27,763 19,959

Crossroads settlement costs . ..... .. — — — 16,974 434

Acquisition expenses .............. — — 1,475 8,837 —
Operating profit{loss) ................. 2,228 9,476  (13,417)  (15,559) 31,571
Otherincome(2) ...................... 3,365 6,035 11,864 38 108,491
Income (loss) before income taxes .. ... .. 5,593 15,511 (1,553) (15,521) 140,062
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .. .. .. (2,142) 3,020 (3,113) (4,181) 44,599
Minority interest . ......... ... .. ..., — — — — 19
Netincome (loss) ..................... $ 7735 $ 12491 $ 1,560 $(11,340) $ 95,444
Basic net income (loss) per share ....... $ 012 $ 020 $ 003 $ (019 $ 162
Diluted net income (loss) per share ...... $ 012 $ 020 $ 002 $ (019 $ 150

As of October 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(Restated) (Restated) {Restated)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents .. ........... $226,890 $180,401 $150,741 $155,274 $194,268
Working capital .. ..................... 281,361 279,545 231,679 257,415 262,021
Totalassets ......................... 475,030 450,157 398,629 398,862 399,245
Long-term debt, excluding current

portion . ... — 967 984 1,170 1,279
Shareholders’ equity .................. 363,898 354,338 328,226 329,968 326,486

(1) The following table summarizes the impact on our consolidated statement of operations for fiscal
2001 of the restatement relating to our accounting for our investment in a private technology
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venture limited partnership discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements (in
thousands, except for per share data):

As Reported As Restated

Loss on securities and investment transactions ........ $ (6,508) $ (7,289)
Otherincome . ........ .. i 819 38

Benefit forincometaxes .......... ... ... ... .. (3,908) (4,181)
NetIoSS .o (10,832) (11,340)
Basicnetlosspershare ............ ... ... ... ... $ (0.18) $ (0.19)
Diluted netlosspershare .......................... $ (0.18) $ (0.19)

(2) Infiscal 2000, other income primarily comprises a net gain on equity securities transactions of
$97.3 million.

Iltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the sections entitled
“Selected Consolidated Financial Data,” “Critical Accounting Estimates” and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion
contains certain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements of
our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions. Our actual results could differ materially from those
discussed here. The cautionary statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K should be read
as being applicable to all forward-looking statements wherever they appear. Factors that could cause
or contribute to such differences inciude those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors,” as well
as those discussed elsewhere herein. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly
release the result of any revisions to these forward-looking statements that may be required to reflect
events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

General

ADIC is a leading provider of Intelligent Storage solutions for the open-systems marketplace. We
design, market, sell and support hardware and software products that help a broad range of business and
governmental organizations manage, access and protect their large-scale data more effectively. Currently,
we derive substantially all of our revenue from the sale of tape and disk-based storage solutions, storage
software, connectivity solutions and related services and support. We distribute our products primarily
through OEMs, value-added resellers (VARs) and distributors, and also sell directly to certain end users.

We have achieved a compounded annual sales growth rate of approximately 15% since fiscal
1999, despite a challenging market during the past few years. In fiscal 2004, we experienced lower
than anticipated sales volumes, which we attribute in part to general economic uncertainties and
resource constraints of our customers due to the implementation of many new regulatory requirements,
including the internal financial controls requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
Sales in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, however, were up approximately 5% from the $110.0 million
reported in the third quarter. Sales to branded customers, which tend to generate a higher gross
margin percentage than our OEM sales, reached a record $65.3 million during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2004 as we enjoyed the benefits of new branded channels like EMC and increased sales of our
newest, technologically sophisticated products like the disk-based Pathlight VX solution. Gross profit
decreased to 28% in fiscal 2004 from 31% in fiscal 2003, primarily due to increased investment in
global services and support, which outpaced revenue from lower than expected sales volumes of our
branded enterprise products. Gross profit during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, however, was at its
highest level since the end of fiscal 2003 as a result of improved sales mix toward branded sales
channels and advanced products. In fiscal 2004, our investment in sales and marketing increased to
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further develop sales channels and skills sufficient to support our technologically evolving product
lines. After experiencing significant increases over the past several years, research and development
expenses moderately decreased during fiscal 2004 due largely to the timing of product development
and lower incentive compensation expenses. Our general and administrative expenses remained flat
year over year despite the growth in sales. We generated an income tax benefit in fiscal 2004 as a
result of tax planning strategies and the release of a tax contingency related to achieving successful
tax audit results. We expect that our long-term tax rate will be closer to statutory rates, although there
may be some additional one-time benefits available in the near term.

We expect to continue to make significant investments in research and development and sales
and marketing in order to remain competitive and to solidify our market position in intelligent storage
solutions. We are in the process of transforming our business from one that has historically been
primarily focused on tape libraries to one with a broad portfolio of technologies and channels
necessary to support software, disk and tape-based solutions in the rapidly evolving backup and
archive storage markets. We believe our ability to serve broader markets with enterprise-level products
and software and to continually develop technologically sophisticated, higher-margin branded products
to replace entry-level products that become commoditized and subject to increasing price pressure at
the OEM level will be key to our future success. In addition, we view a comprehensive global service
and support offering as an integral component of our strategy and our total customer solution. In order
to meet customer needs, the offerings of our global services group not only include the standard
activities needed to ensure successful selection and on-going support of products, but are also directly
coupled with meeting dynamic customer requirements and innovative product design that can help
minimize the need for conventional service. Service infrastructure and technology investment have
been—and are expected to continue to be—major priorities, as we scale to meet our organizational
growth and the needs of our expanding installed base.

We believe continued investment in sales and marketing and research and development is required
in order to successfully penetrate new markets, reach new customers and expand our offerings. The
competition in our industry is strong and we must constantly work to reduce the cost of our existing
products while retaining high quality standards and reliability. We have outsourced the production of our
entry-level products and a portion of the repair of these products to third party manufacturers to allow us
to take advantage of our suppliers’ economies of scale in component purchasing, manufacturing test and
other areas associated with production of our higher volume, lower margin products.

Since 1998, in addition to our increased investment in internal research and development, we have
made four acquisitions that enabled us to acquire new technologies. These technologies include Storage
Area Network (SAN) software, other proprietary hardware and software technology that allow users to
deploy SANSs, and disk-based data protection products for the open systems market. In addition to
acquiring new technologies, the acquisitions allowed us to expand our operations in Europe, gain a global
services organization and add large libraries and proprietary software to our product offerings.

In November 2003, we expanded an existing outsource manufacturing relationship with
Benchmark to include final assembly and test of a significant portion of our entry-level and workgroup
tape automation product line. In connection with this expansion, we transferred to Benchmark
approximately 150 team members associated with manufacturing, test and supply chain management.
Benchmark assumed the lease on our Redmond, Washington manufacturing facility and purchased
inventory associated with the product line and property, plant and equipment related to the operation
for $15.1 million in cash. In June 2004, we further expanded our existing outsource relationship to
incorporate screening and repair of certain entry-level and workgroup tape automation products. In
connection with this expansion, we transferred to Benchmark certain team members from our customer
service and repair operations in Redmond. Additionally, Benchmark purchased certain inventory and
property, plant and equipment associated with these operations for $1.6 million in cash. There was no
gain or loss recorded on any of these transactions.
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In June 2004, we announced the execution of a reseller agreement with EMC pursuant to which
EMC sells ADIC tape libraries. All products sold through EMC bear the ADIC brand and all service
associated with the products is the responsibility of ADIC. We expect this expansion of our branded
sales channel to gradually improve overall sales growth; however, there are no minimum purchase
commitments under the arrangement, the quantity of products purchased by EMC is based upon
market demand and the agreement may be disruptive to our current business and sales channels.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we will begin recording the fair value of our share-based
compensation in our financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment (Revised 2004).” The full impact that the adoption of this
statement will have on our financial position and results of operations is not yet known, but we do not
expect the impact will be material to the fiscal 2005 income statement.

Foreign currency gains or losses arise as a result of our operation of European subsidiaries, the
functional currencies of which are the euro and British pound sterling. All assets are recorded in the
functional currencies on the financial statements of these subsidiaries. Some U.S. dollar-denominated
receivables and payables in these subsidiaries offset each other to reduce our exposure to transaction
gains and losses. To the extent that these monetary assets and liabilities do not fully offset each other
and the U.S. dallar exchange rate changes with respect to these currencies, transaction gains or
losses may result.

Our financial statements for the years ended October 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 have been
restated to correct our accounting for our investment in a limited partnership. During fiscal 2004, we
determined that our investment in Frazier Technology Venture Fund | (FTVI), a limited partnership, has
been improperly accounted for since fiscal 2000. We initially accounted for our investment under the
cost method since our ownership interest in FTVI is less than 20% and we do not have significant
influence over the partnership’s operating and financial policies. Subseguently it was determined that
the equity method is appropriate under EITF Topic D-46, “Accounting for Limited Partnership
Investments,” because our limited partnership ownership interest is greater than 5%. See Note 2 of the
Notes to Consgdlidated Financial Statements for additional information. The following discussion and
analysis gives effect to the restatement.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to 2003

Net Sales. Net sales increased 7% during fiscal 2004 to $454.8 million from $424.0 million in
fiscal 2003. The increase is due to higher sales to both branded and OEM customers. Annual growth
rates of branded and OEM sales during fiscal 2004 were 9% and 5%, respectively. ADIC branded
revenues represented 53% of sales in fiscal 2004 compared to 52% in fiscal 2003. Revenue from OEM
customers comprised 47% of sales in fiscal 2004 compared to 48% in fiscal 2003. Branded sales have
increased in all major geographical markets in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003. The primary source
of this growth was revenues from hardware service contracts and software maintenance contracts,
which increased due to both new product sales and renewals of existing contracts. The absolute dollar
growth in OEM sales is primarily due to increased sales of products introduced within the past two
years. During fiscal 2005, we expect branded revenues to increase as a percentage of net sales as we
continue to devote more focus on enterprise-level products and software and less focus on the
entry-level tapelibraries that comprise the bulk of our OEM revenues.

Dell and IBM accounted for fiscal 2004 revenues of $109.9 million (24%) and $96.4 million (21%)
and fiscal 2003 revenues of $103.3 million (24%) and $96.1 million (23%). Net sales outside the United
States accounted for 35% of our net sales in both fiscal 2004 and 2003.

Gross Profit.  Gross profit was $129.2 million or 28% of net sales for fiscal 2004 compared to
$131.9 million or 31% of net sales for fiscal 2003. Gross profit margins depend on a number of factors,
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including channel and product mix, fixed infrastructure costs, price competition and tape drive costs.
The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 is
primarily a result of increased investment in our global services infrastructure to support our growing
global customer base. Lower-than-expected sales volumes of branded enterprise products have
caused the growth in our global services costs to outpace our revenue growth. We expect gross
margin will improve for fiscal 2005 as we execute on our strategy of shifting customer mix toward our
branded channels and product mix toward newer, more technologically sophisticated products that
include elements of our proprietary storage management software and connectivity technology.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses were $64.8 million or 14% of net
sales for fiscal 2004 compared to $57.8 million or 14% of net sales for fiscal 2003. The absolute dollar
increase is primarily the result of increased labor costs as we've added headcount as part of our
continued efforts to expand our sales channels in order to penetrate new markets, reach new
customers and to support new product offerings. During fiscal 2005, we expect sales and marketing
expenses to remain relatively flat as we leverage the investment we have made in sales and marketing
over the past few years.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses were $24.2 million
or 5% of net sales for fiscal 2004 compared to $24.0 million or 6% of net sales for fiscal 2003. We
expect growth in absolute dollars of general and administrative expenses during fiscal 2005, primarily
related to our Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 compliance requirements and professional services fees to
support ongoing tax and business strategy planning.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $37.9 million
or 8% of net sales for fiscal 2004 compared to $40.6 million or 10% of net sales for fiscal 2003. Two
primary factors contributed equally to the decrease in fiscal 2004 research and development expenses.
The first was lower material costs in fiscal 2004 associated with product development efforts due to the
timing of product introductions. The second was a reduction in recorded incentive compensation
expenses recorded in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 when the Company met certain incentive
compensation targets. An increase in depreciation and other facilities costs offset approximately
one-half of these decreases. We anticipate research and development spending to increase in
absolute dollars during fiscal 2005 as we continue to invest in new product development and
enhancements to our current product lines. Further, we believe the potential for growth in the market
for storage solutions is sufficient to justify growth in our investment in research and development.

Other Income. Other income primarily consists of interest income, net foreign currency
transaction gains and net gain on securities and investment transactions. Interest income for fiscal
2004 was $2.5 million compared to $2.2 million for fiscal 2003. The increase in interest income in fiscal
2004 is primarily the result of higher average cash and investment balances during the year. Foreign
currency transaction gains were $1.1 million and $1.6 million during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Our net foreign currency transaction gains are impacted by fluctuations in the currency markets, and
there is no assurance that we will experience the same types of gains on these transactions as in fiscal
2004 and 2003. Other income includes a net gain on securities and investment transactions of $73,000
and $2.7 million in fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. In fiscal 2004, we recorded equity investment
losses of $799,000 that reflected a reduction in the fair value of investments related to our $5 million
fiscal 2000 commitment to participate in a private technology venture limited partnership. These losses
represent our pro rata share of the limited partnership’s net loss, which is primarily based on the
general partner’s estimates of the fair value of non-marketable securities held by the partnership and,
to a lesser extent, realized gains and losses from the partnership’s disposal of securities. In both years,
securities gains primarily related to the conversion of one of our investments in a private company to
cash and marketable equity securities, and the subsequent receipt of additional shares under earnout
and escrow provisions and the sale of those securities. In fiscal 2005, we expect interest income to
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remain flat. Net foreign currency transaction gains (losses) and net gain {loss) on securities and
investment transactions will be driven by prevailing market conditions.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. For fiscal 2004, income tax benefit was $2.1 million
compared to income tax expense of $3.0 million in fiscal 2003. In fiscal 2004 we had an effective tax
benefit of 38% iand in fiscal 2003 we had an effective tax expense of 19%. The tax benefit in fiscal
2004 reflects the tax benefits of our credit for research and development spending, our extraterritorial
income exclusion, non-taxable interest income and release of a tax contingency related to the
favorable outcome of tax audits that have been concluded. The effective tax benefit is not expected to
be sustainable:as the tax benefits will not grow as rapidly as the statutory tax expense during years of
higher profitability. It is reasonable to anticipate that our long-term tax rate will be closer to statutory
rates, althoughithere may be some additional one-time benefits available in the near term. As a result
of our modest income in 2003, taxes paid in various federal, state and international jurisdictions
moderately exceeded the tax benefits related to the three items described above, reflecting a relatively
low tax expense.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to 2002

Net Sales. Net sales increased 26% during fiscal 2003 to $424.0 million from $337.6 million in
fiscal 2002. The increase was due to higher sales to both OEM and branded customers. Annual growth
rates of OEM and branded sales during fiscal 2003 were 35% and 18%, respectively. Revenue from
OEM customers comprised 48% of sales in fiscal 2003 compared to 45% in fiscal 2002. ADIC branded
revenues represented 52% of sales in fiscal 2003 compared to 55% in fiscal 2002. The growth in OEM
sales was due to a combination of increasing penetration with existing products and the addition of
new products. Branded sales increased in all major geographical markets in fiscal 2003 compared to
fiscal 2002. The majority of this growth came in sales of enterprise-level products and revenues from
global services. Dell and IBM accounted for fiscal 2003 revenues of $103.3 million (24%) and $96.1
million (23%) and fiscal 2002 revenues of $63.5 million (19%) and $86.2 million (26%).

Net sales outside the United States accounted for 35% of our net sales in fiscal 2003 and 41% of
our net sales in fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2002, a portion of our net sales outside the United States was due
to an OEM customer for whom we maintained a revolver warehouse outside the United States. During
fiscal 2003, all of the sales to this OEM customer shifted to a revolver warehouse within the United
States, which caused a decline in the reported percentage of non-U.S. sales. This decline was partially
offset by an increase in sales to European and Asian customers.

Gross Profit.  Gross profit was $131.9 million or 31% of net sales for fiscal 2003 compared to
$91.8 million or 27% of net sales for fiscal 2002, an increase of 44% on a net sales increase of 26%.
The increase in gross profit in fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002 was primarily a result of the absolute
dollar increase in branded sales, including revenue from higher margin enterprise-level products and
software. This increase was partially offset by the increase in the proportion of OEM sales.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses were $57.8 million or 14% of net
sales for fiscal 2003 compared to $48.3 million or 14% of net sales for fiscal 2002. The absolute dollar
increase was due to continued efforts to expand our sales and services channels in order to enter new
markets and new customers and to support new product offerings.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses were $24.0 million
or 6% of net sales for fiscal 2003 compared to $23.2 million or 7% of net sales for fiscal 2002. The
absolute dollar increase was attributable to an increase in overall compensation as a result of the
Company meeting certain incentive compensation targets and continued investments in our
infrastructure, partially offset by decreases in bad debt expense. In fiscal 2002, bad debt expense was
$1.3 million, the majority of which was attributed to a single customer.
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Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $40.6 million
for fiscal 2003 compared to $32.2 million for fiscal 2002. This represented a 26% increase in our
investment in research and development over our prior fiscal year. In both years, research and
development expenses were 10% of net sales. The increase in absolute dollars in fiscal 2003 reflected
our strategy to maintain heavy investments in software and connectivity product development and
related to added personnel resources and additional spending related to new products. Additionally, in
fiscal 2003 we recorded an increase in overall compensation as a result of incentive compensation.

Acquisition Expenses. Expenses related to our acquisition of V-Stor were $1.5 million during
fiscal 2002. These one-time acquisition charges related to acquired in-process research and
development and compensation to V-Stor personnel.

Other Income. Other income primarily consisted of net gain on securities and investment
transactions, interest income and net foreign currency transaction gains. Other income was $6.0 million
for fiscal 2003 compared to $11.9 million for fiscal 2002. Other income in fiscal 2003 included a gain on
securities and investment transactions of $2.7 million, which primarily related to conversion of one of
our investments in a private company to cash and marketable equity securities, and the subsequent
sale of the majority of those securities. In fiscal 2002, other income included a gain on marketable
securities transactions of $8.2 million, which was offset by a $750,000 charge for impairment of an
investment we held in a private technology company. The gains realized in fiscal 2002 consisted of
gains from the sale of derivative financial instruments on securities we held for investment as well as
the sale of marketable securities. Interest income for fiscal 2003 was $2.2 million compared to $3.6
million for fiscal 2002. The decrease in interest income in fiscal 2003 was the result of lower returns on
cash and investment balances during the year. This decrease in interest income was partially offset by
an increase in foreign currency transaction gains resulting from stronger European currencies.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. We had income tax expense of $3.0 million in fiscal 2003
compared to income tax benefit of $3.1 million in fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2003 we had an effective tax
expense of 19% and in fiscal 2002 we had an effective tax benefit of 200%. The relatively low tax rate
in fiscal 2003 reflected the tax benefits of our credit for research and development spending, our
extraterritorial income exclusion and non-taxable interest income. As a result of our near breakeven
taxable income in 2002, taxes paid in various federal, state and international jurisdictions were
exceeded by the tax benefits related to the three items described above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating activities were $31.7 million, $16.0 million and $40.0 million
during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During fiscal 2004, the difference between reported
net income and cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to depreciation and
amortization, an increase in deferred revenue and a decrease in accounts receivable, which were
offset by increases in service parts for maintenance and inventories. Deferred revenue increased due
to increased sales of hardware service contracts and software maintenance contracts, which are
typically billed at the beginning of the contract term and recognized as revenue over the contract
period, and certain software licenses that require deferral under generally accepted accounting
principles. Accounts receivable decreased primarily due to the timing of collections from customers.
The increase in service parts for maintenance relates to the support of our growing installed base of
products. Inventories increased primarily due to an increase in raw materials to support new products
and customers. In fiscal 2003, the difference between reported net income and cash provided by
operating activities was primarily due to depreciation and amortization and increases in accounts
payable, accrued liabilities and deferred revenue, which were offset by increases in accounts
receivable, inventories and service parts for maintenance. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
increased primarily due to the timing of payments. As in fiscal 2004, deferred revenue increased due to
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increased sales of service and maintenance contracts and certain software licenses. Accounts
receivable increased primarily due to increased sales and the timing of such sales, and inventories and
service parts for maintenance increased as we launched both new products and existing products into
new channels. During fiscal 2002, the difference between reported net income and cash provided by
operating activities was primarily due to depreciation and amortization, decreases in accounts
receivable and inventories, an increase in deferred revenue, income tax refunds, and gains on
securities and investment transactions, which were offset by an increase in service parts for
maintenance. Inventories decreased as we entered into certain vendor-managed inventory programs,
under which ownership transfers at the time we take possession of inventory in the manufacturing
process. The increase in deferred revenue was due 1o increased sales of service and maintenance
contracts. As in fiscal 2003, the increases in service parts for maintenance related to new product
offerings as well as maintenance of our increasing installed base of existing solutions.

Cash flows: provided by (used in) investing activities included proceeds from certain securities
transactions, primarily the maturities of marketable debt securities, sale of marketable equity securities
and covered calls on shares owned by us, of $24.6 million, $38.6 million and $41.9 million for fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These proceeds were offset by purchases of marketable securities
of $9.1 million, $16.5 million and $52.8 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and
$692,000, $500,000 and $3.3 million of investments in non-marketable securities of non-public
technology businesses during the same respective periods. During fiscal 2004, we received proceeds
of $16.7 million from the disposal of assets held for sale, which primarily comprised inventory and
leasehold improvements related to the Benchmark manufacturing outsourcing agreement completed
during the year. Investments in property, plant and equipment were $14.6 million, $14.3 million and
$26.9 during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Capital expenditures during fiscal 2004 were
comprised primarily of computer hardware and software to support initiatives within our global services
and research and development organizations and tooling and equipment related to new product
introductions. Capital expenditures during fiscal 2003 were comprised primarily of computer hardware
and software for our global information technology infrastructure and tooling and equipment related to
new product introductions. Capital expenditures during fiscal 2002 were comprised primarily of
computer hardware and software associated with the global implementation of a Customer
Relationship Management information system and the worldwide rollout of our North American
Enterprise Resource Planning information system, leasehold improvements purchased for our new
Englewood, Colorado facility and tooling and equipment related to new product introductions.

With respect to cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities, during fiscal 2004, 2003 and
2002, we received proceeds from the issuance of common stock under our Stock Purchase Plan and
the exercise of stock options and stock warrants of $8.1 million, $8.4 million and $6.5 million,
respectively. We repurchased $9.5 million, $697,000 and $7.9 million of our common stock during
fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During fiscal 2003, we borrowed $781,000 on a credit line
from a German bank, which we repaid in full during the same year. Offsetting cash flows provided by
financing activities in all periods were certain payments on short-term and long-term debt, which were
$1.2 million, $3.4 million and $2.2 million for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. All of our
outstanding debt was repaid in full during the third quarter of fiscal 2004.

At October 31, 2004, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $226.9 million, up from $180.4 million
at October 31, 2003. Our cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled $232.9 million
and $201.2 million at October 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Our working capital, the difference
between current assets and current liabilities, was $281.4 million at October 31, 2004 compared to
$279.5 million at October 31, 2003. The ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 3.9 to 1 and 4.2
to 1 at October 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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The following table summarizes our contractual cash commitments as of October 31, 2004;

Payments Due During Fiscal Years Ended October 31,

Total 2005 2006-2007 2008-2009 Thereafter
(In thousands)
Operatingleases ............ ..., $22,003 $ 4,871 $7,696 $4,777  $4,659
Purchase obligations ....................... 48,591 47,991 400 200 —
Total contractual cash obligations ............. $70,594 $52,862 $8,096 $4,977 $4,659

Included in the operating lease amounts above are the cash commitments related to a liability
recorded in fiscal 2001 to reflect the anticipated costs to exit the facility in Englewood, Colorado that
we partially abandoned in fiscal 2002, This liability represents our estimate of the net amount of lease
payments related to unused capacity of the facility. During fiscal 2004, we made payments of
$718,000, $511,000 of which related to unused capacity in the facility. This $511,000 reduced the
liability from $1,008,000 at October 31, 2003 to $497,000 at October 31, 2004. During fiscal 2003, we
made payments of $633,000, all of which related to unused capacity in the facility. This $633,000
reduced the liability from $1,641,000 at October 31, 2002 to $1,008,000 at October 31, 2003. We
believe the remaining liability of $497,000 at October 31, 2004 is adequate to cover the cost of unused
capacity in the facility through the end of the lease term in December 2006.

Purchase obligations include accounts payable to our vendors and four remaining annual
payments of $200,000 for a $1,000,000 patent license.

Other commitments not included in the contractual cash commitments summary above include
$2,710,000 in funding of investments in two limited partnership venture capital funds, which is
discussed in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our October 31, 2004 balance sheet
includes liabilities for the purchase obligations and the anticipated exit costs accrued during fiscal
2001. None of the other commitments mentioned above require accrual at October 31, 2004. We had
no other material or unusual commitments as of October 31, 2004.

Based on our strong cash position, anticipated profitable operations and planned expenditures,
including further investment in our product development strategy, we believe that our existing cash and
cash equivalents, marketable securities and anticipated cash flow from our operating activities will be
sufficient to fund our working capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months. .
However, cash flows from operations could be negatively impacted by a decrease in demand for our
products as a result of rapid technological changes and other risks described under “Risk Factors.”
Over the longer term, we may choose to fund our operations through the issuance of additional equity
or debt financing. The issuance of equity or convertible debt securities could result in dilution to our
stockholders, and we cannot provide any assurance that such additional long-term financing, if
required, could be completed on favorable terms.

We will continue to evaluate possible acquisitions of, or investments in businesses, products, or
technologies that we believe are strategic, which may require the use of cash. In addition, we have
made and expect to continue to make investments in companies with whom we have identified
potential synergies.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
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expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate
our estimates, including those related to customer agreements, sales returns, bad debts, inventory
obsolescence, service parts for maintenance, warranty costs, investments, intangible assets, acquired
in-process technology, deferred income taxes, potential tax exposures and legal proceedings. We base
our estimates on a combination of specifically identified items we are aware of, historical trends, our
expectations of the future and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies involve significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. See Note 1 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for a summary of all our significant accounting policies and recent accounting
pronouncements that apply to us.

Customer Agreements and Sales Returns

We record'estimated reductions to revenue for specifically-identified customer agreements, such
as special pricing, price protection, stock rotation and volume-based incentives, at the time of
shipment. These estimates are based upon the expected rate of occurrence taking into consideration
both historical and current information. If market conditions were to decline, we may take actions to
enter into more of these agreements, possibly resulting in an incremental reduction of revenue at the
time the incentive is offered. We also record an allowance for sales returns for our estimates of
expected customer product returns based on current sales and historical return rates. Should actual
return rates differ from our estimates, revisions to our sales return allowance may be necessary. Since
we have historically been able to reliably estimate the amount of allowances required for future price
adjustments and product returns, we recognize revenue, net of projected allowances, upon shipment to
our customers. If we were unable to reliably estimate the amount of future price adjustments and
product returns.in any specific reporting period, then we would be required to defer recognition of the
revenue until the right to future price adjustments and product returns were to lapse and we were no
longer under any obligation to reduce the price or take back the product.

Bad Debts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. We estimate these losses based on specifically identified
at-risk receivables and the overall aging of our accounts receivable. If the financial condition of our
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required, and our ability to recognize sales to certain customers may be affected.

Inventory Obsolescence

We evaluate our inventory and record a provision for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable
inventory equalito the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based
upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If technology rapidly changes or actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-
downs may be required.

Service Parts for Maintenance

We value aur service parts for maintenance at the lower of amortized cost or market. Amortization
of the aggregate service parts is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
three to seven years. Should the technology or cur customers’ service needs change and cause a
decrease in the estimated useful lives of such service parts, additional expense would be required.
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Warranty Costs

We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While
we engage in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and
evaluating the quality of our suppliers, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates,
material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual product
failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required.

Investments

We hold equity interests in private companies having operations or technology in areas within our
strategic focus and limited partnership interests in private technology venture limited partnerships. We
also hold investment-grade marketable debt securities in government and commercial entities. We
record an investment impairment charge when we obtain specific information that causes us to believe
an investment has experienced a decline in value that is other than temporary. Future adverse
changes in market conditions or poor operating results of underlying investments could result in losses
or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may not be reflected in an
investment's current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future. For
our interests in private technology venture limited partnerships, which are accounted for under the
equity method, we record equity investment gains or losses equal to our pro rata share of the limited
partnership’s income or loss. This income or loss is primarily based on the general partner’'s estimates
of the fair value of non-marketable securities held by the partnership and, to a lesser extent, realized
gains and losses from the partnership’s disposal of securities. All estimates related to our non-
marketable securities are subject to the inherent uncertainty associated with the valuation of securities
for which there is no public market.

Intangible Assets

Upon our adoption of SFAS 142 in the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we ceased amortizing goodwill
and performed an initial review for impairment. Goodwill impairment has been reviewed annually
thereafter, or more frequently when indicators of impairment are present. We did not record an
impairment charge based on this initial review or our annual reviews performed during the third
quarters of fiscal 2004 and 2003. Cther intangible assets are carried and reported at acquisition cost,
net of accumulated amortization subsequent to acquisition. The acquisition cost is amortized over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 30 months to seven years. Intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate impairment might exist, or at least
annually. The determination of the net carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets and the extent
to which, if any, there is impairment are dependent on material estimates and judgments on our part,
including the useful life over which the intangible assets are to be amortized, and the estimates of the
value of future net cash flows, which are based upon further estimates of future revenues, expenses
and operating margins.

Acquired In-Process Technology

When we enter into a business combination, we record an expense for the value of acquired
in-process technology that has not reached technological feasibility and has no alternative future use
as of the date of acquisition. The valuation of acquired in-process technology is typically based upon
our estimates and valuations by a third-party appraiser.

Deferred Income Taxes

During fiscal 2004, we recorded a valuation allowance of $1.2 million to reduce our deferred tax
assets relating to our foreign tax credits and selected state net operating losses because we believe it
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is more likely than not that these assets will not be realized. We do not have a valuation allowance on
any other deferred tax assets because we believe that the assets are more likely than not to be
realized. While we have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax
planning strategies in assessing the appropriateness of a valuation allowance, in the event we were to
determine that we would have a change in the realization of the net deferred tax asset in the future, an
adjustment to the deferred tax asset or valuation allowance would be made.

Potential Tax Exposures and Legal Proceedings

We record liabilities to address potential exposures related to business and income tax positions
we have taken that have been or could be challenged by taxing authorities. Additionally, we record
liabilities associated with legal proceedings and lawsuits. These liabilities are recorded when the
likelihood of payment is probable and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. The determination for
required liabilities is based upon analysis of each individual tax issue or legal proceeding, taking into
consideration the likelihood of adverse judgments and the range of possible loss. Additionally, our
analysis may include discussion with outside legal counsel. The ultimate resolution of these potential
tax exposures and legal proceedings may be greater or less than the liabilities recorded.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Currently, approximately 54% of our total international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars;
therefore we are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk. The assets and liabilities of our non-
U.S. subsidiaries have functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar and are translated into U.S.
dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period. A 10% appreciation in the U.S. dollar
would have resulted in an approximately $1.6 million and $1.8 million decrease in income before
provision (benefit) for income taxes during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. Such a change in
income would have resulted from applying a different exchange rate to transiate and revalue the
financial statements of our non-U.S. subsidiaries. To hedge this exposure, we may enter into forward-
currency exchange contracts from time to time. Such contracts provide for the exchange of one
currency for anpther at an agreed-upon price at an agreed-upon settlement date. We had no such
contracts outstanding as of October 31, 2004

Interest Rate Risk

From time to time we invest in marketable debt securities as part of our cash management policy
and not for trading purposes. These investments are subject to risks from changes in interest rates. All
such investments held as of October 31, 2004 have maturity dates of less than one year. A
hypothetical 10% adverse change in interest rates applied to our current marketable debt securities
would not have:a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Advanced Digital Information Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
statements of operations, of changes in shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Advanced Digital Information Corporation and its
subsidiaries at October 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s. management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
pltan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective November 1, 2002, the
Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill as required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “*Goodwill and Intangible Assets.”

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective August 1, 2003, the
Company changed its method of accounting for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements as required
by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.”

As discussed in Note 2, the consolidated financial statements for the years ended October 31,
2003 and 2002 have been restated.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Seattle, Washington
January 13, 2005
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ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

October 31,
2004 2003
(Restated)

(In thousands,
except for share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents . ....... ... ... .. .. .. ... .. ... ..., $226,890 $180,401
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,319 in 2004 and $1,435in 2003 . . . 93,025 100,391
Inventories, Net . ... ... . . 38,728 35,736
Short-term marketable securities . ......... ... .. .. o 6,043 20,788
Assetsheldforsale .. ... ... ... . i i i — 12,384
Prepaid expensesandother . . ... ... ... ... ... . . ... . 2,845 2,356
Income taxesreceivable ......... ... . . — 5,520
Deferred income taxes ........ ... i 10,757 8,303
Totalcurrentassets ........ ... .. 378,288 365,879
Property, plant and equipment, net ....... .. ... .. ... ... . 45,913 45,505
Service parts for maintenance, net ....... ... .. L 29,993 28,427
Deferred incometaxes ... ... i 13,461 3,101
INVESIMENES .. o 2,769 2,947
GooaWIll .. 2,596 2,596
intangible and otherassets ......... ... ... ... . . 2,010 1,702
$475,030 $450,157
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ....... . ... $ 47,991 $ 45,159
Accrued liabilities . . ... ... . 17,035 19,653
Income taxes payable .. .. ... . 174 —
Current portion of deferredrevenue . .. .......... .. ... ... .. .. ... ... 31,727 21,330
Bank lines of credit and current portion of long-termdebt ................. — 192
Total currentliabilities ........... ... ... . . 96,927 86,334
Long-term deferredrevenue .. ... ... . 13,605 8,518
Long-termdebt . ... .. ... — 967
Other long-term liabilities . ......... ... .. . . . 600 —
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 4,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding . .. .. ... — —
Common stock, no par value; 160,000,000 shares authorized, 63,758,716
issued and outstanding at October 31, 2004 (63,700,832 in 2003) . .... ... 234,724 234,190
Retained earnings . ... ... .o i 127,877 120,142
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Cumulative translation adjustment . ............ .. ... .. ... ... ... 1,301 (42)
Unrealized investment gains (Iosses) ............ ... i, (4) 48
Total shareholders’ equity ............ ... .. . i i, 363,898 354,338
$475,030 $450,157

See the accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended October 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except for per share
. data)
Netsales ... i e $454,819 $423,998 $337,599
Costofsales ........c. i 325,588 292,121 245,832
Grossprofit ....... ... . 129,231 131,877 91,767
Operating expenses:
Salesandmarketing ....... ... ... .. 64,836 57,777 48,307
General and administrative . .............. ... ... .. .. ... 24,242 24,015 23,172
Research and development . ............................ 37,925 40,609 32,230
ACQUISItION BXPENSES . ... . i — — 1,475
| 127,003 122,401 105,184
Operating profit (loss) ............... .. ... ...l 2,228 9,476 (13,417)
Other income (expense):
Interestincome .. ... .. ... . . . 2,503 2,198 3,567
Gain on securities and investment transactions, net ... ....... 73 2,722 7,482
Foreign currency transaction gains, net . ................... 1,114 1,569 1,094
Other . i (325) (454) (279)
3,365 6,035 11,864
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes ......... 5,593 15,511 (1,553)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes:
Current .. 3,190 (2,495) (7,202)
Deferred ...... ... . . (5,332) 5,515 4,089
(2,142) 3,020 (3,113)
Netincome ... ... i e $ 7,735 $ 12,491 § 1,560
Basic netincome pershare ............. ... ... i, $ 012 $ 020 $ 0.03
Diluted net income pershare ................... ..ol $ 012 $ 020 $ 0.02

See the accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Accumulated
c Otr;‘er .
omprehensive
M Retained I‘r)\comes
Shares Amount Earnings (Loss) Total
{Restated) (Restated)
(In thousands)
Balance at October 31,2001 . ..................... ... 61,934 $221,399 $106,091 $ 2,478 $329,968
Sharesrepurchased ............... ... ..., (1,294) (7,863) — — (7.863)
Purchases under Stock Purchase Plan ................ 286 1,943 — — 1,943
Exercise of stock options, including tax benefit of
82,807 .. 898 7,065 — — 7,065
Exerciseofwarrants . ....... ... ... . i 106 143 — — 143
Cancellation of Pathlight escrow shares . ............... (55) — — — —
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome ... .. o i — — 1,560 — —
Unrealized investment gains (losses):
Unrealized investment losses, net of tax of
$1,410 . — — — (2,618) —
Reclassification adjustment: gain included in net
income, netoftaxof $1,285 .. .............. — — — (2,387) —
Foreign currency transiation adjustment, net of tax of
223 e — — —_ 415 —
Total comprehensive loss .................... — — — — (3,030)
Balance at October 31,2002 ......................... 61,875 222,687 107,651 (2,112) 328,226
Sharesrepurchased ............. ... ... . ... ... (113) (697) — — (697)
Purchases under Stock Purchase Plan . /.............. 422 2,329 — — 2,329
Exercise of stock options, including tax benefit of
83,844 L 1,512 9,866 — — 9,866
Exerciseofwarrants ......... ... ... ... ..o 5 5 — — 5
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome . ... ... — — 12,491 — —
Unrealized investment gains (losses):
Unrealized investment gains, net of tax of $60 . .. — — — 111 —
Reclassification adjustment: loss included in net
income, netoftaxof $87 . .................. — — — 162 —
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax of
B0 L — — — 1,845 —
Total comprehensiveincome . ................ —_— — — — 14,609
Balance at October 31,2003 ......................... 63,701 234,190 120,142 6 354,338
Sharesrepurchased .......... ... ... .. ... (1,010) (9,510) — — (9,510)
Purchases under Stock Purchase Plan ................ 282 2,612 — — 2,612
Exercise of stock options, including tax benefit of
S, 87 761 7,378 — — 7,378
Exerciseofwarrants ............... ... . .o 25 54 — — 54
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome . ....... ... ... i i — — 7,735 — —
Unrealized investment gains (losses):
Unrealized investment gains, net of tax of $29 ... — — — (54) —
Reclassification adjustment: loss included in net
income, netoftaxof $1 .................... — — — 2 —
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax of
8723 — — — 1,343 —
Total comprehensive income ................. — — — — 9,026
Balance at October 31,2004 . ........................ 63,759 $234,724  $127.877 $ 1,297 $363,898

See the accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended October 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
NELINCOME .. e e $ 7735 $ 12491 $ 1,560
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization . .......... ... ... ... .ol 24,538 21,014 16,815
Baddebtexpense ... ... 211 14 1,258
Inventory obsolescence .......... ... ... 3,335 4,334 4173
Acquired in-process research and development .................. — — 1,200
Gain onisecurities and investment transactions .. ................. (73) (2,722) (7,482)
Deferred income taxes . ... .. ittt i it (2,898) 5,323 4,279
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ..................... .. 1,971 3,844 2,607
O T . e e 81 131 17
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ........ ... ... . . 6,616 (29,041) 9,807
INVENTOTIES . . . vttt e (8,465) (15,467) 6,585
Prepaidiexpensesandother ... ... .. ... .. ... .. L (402) (51) (436)
Service parts for maintenance ......... .. ... . o i o (11,032) (9,865) (10,210)
Accountspayable ...... ... ... .. e 1,309 9,282 683
Accrued liabilities . ... ... (3,303) 7,228 (1.,369)
IMCOME tAXES . ..ottt (2,636) 848 3,306
Deferredrevenue . ..... ... ... i 14,692 8,656 7,234
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .......... .. ... ... ... ... 31,679 16,019 40,027
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plantand equipment .......................... (14,644) (14,296) (26,932)
Proceeds from assets heldforsale . . .......... ... .. ... .. ... . ....... 16,740 — —
Purchase of marketable securities ............. ... ... ... .. ..., . (9,054) (16,478) (52,812)
Proceeds from securities transactions ............. ... ... ... ... .... 24,590 38,630 41,875
Purchase of otherinvestments ............... ... ... .. ... .. ....... (692) (500) (3,259)
Purchase of intangibleassets ........... ... ... .. ... . . L, (200) — —
Return of investment on otherinvestments .......................... 71 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ........................ 16,811 7,356 (41,128)
Cash flows from:financing activities:
Repayment of short-term and long-termdebt ................... ... .. (1,221) (3,373) (2,227)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings . ......... .. ... ... ... L. — 781 —
Repurchase 6f commonstock . .......... .. ... ... ... . i (9,510} (697) (7,863)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock for stock options, stock
warrants and Stock Purchase Plan ............... ... ... ... ... ... 8,073 8,356 6,544
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activites ........................ (2,658) 5,067 (3,546)
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ............................... 657 1,218 114
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .................... 46,489 29,660 (4,533)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ........................ 180,401 150,741 155,274
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period ............................. $226,890 $180,401 $150,741

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Years Ended October 31,

2004

2003

2002

{In thousands)

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest . ... .. $ 123 3% 211

INCOME taXES .. .o $1,826 $§ 734
Non-cash investing activity:

Patent license acquired with long-term payable . .................. $ 800 § —

Conversion of cost basis investment into marketable securities . ... .. $ — $6,350

See the accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of Advanced Digital Information Corporation
(ADIC) and our wholly owned subsidiaries, including the subsidiaries representing our major
international operations: ADIC Europe SARL (ADE), ADIC Germany GmbH & Co. KG (ADIC Germany)
and ADIC Limited (ADIC UK). The companies are collectively hereinafter referred to as “ADIC,” “we,”
“our” and “us.” All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Operations

ADIC provides Intelligent Storage solutions for the open-systems marketplace. Along with our
value-added resellers (VARSs), distributors, OEM partners and end-user customers, we incorporate our
proprietary hardware, software and connectivity solutions, as well as our service and support expertise,
with third-party hardware and software products to deliver reliable, flexible and scalable storage
solutions. Our storage solutions are designed to enable a broad range of business and governmental
organizations to manage, access and protect their large-scale data more effectively. We sell our
products on a global basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term are those related
to customer agreements, sales returns, bad debts, inventory obsolescence, service parts for
maintenance, warranty costs, investments, intangible assets, acquired in-process technology, deferred
income taxes, potential tax exposures and legal proceedings.

Revenue Recognition

We rely on multiple distribution channels; our customers may be VARSs, distributors, OEMs or end
users. Revenue from hardware product sales is recognized in accordance with EITF 00-21, "Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,” which was adopted in fiscal 2003, and Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104, "Revenue Recognition,” which was adopted in fiscal 2004. Under these
pronouncements, we recognize revenue from hardware sales upon shipment provided that there is no
customer acceptance clause in the purchase order or contract, there are no significant post-delivery
obligations remaining, the price is fixed and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.
When significant post-delivery obligations exist, the related revenue is deferred until such obligations
are fulfilled. If there are customer acceptance criteria in the contract, we recognize revenue upon
end-user acceptance, which typically occurs after delivery and installation are completed. Revenue
from extended and enhanced service contracts is deferred and recognized ratably over the life of the
contract. We define service revenue to include these service contracts, and we view all other types of
revenue as part of our product sales. We consign inventory at third-party warehouses for certain OEM
partners. We recognize revenue when our OEM partner takes title to the inventory, which can occur
one of two ways. In some instances, the warehouse ships inventory to the OEM partner, and in other
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instances, the warehouse ships inventory directly to a customer of the OEM. In both instances, title
transfers to our OEM partner upon shipment. Libraries, software, service contracts and maintenance
services may be sold separately or fogether. If sold together, total revenue is allocated to the various
elements based upon the price of that item sold on a separate basis.

Certain distributors and direct marketing resellers have the right, on a quarterly basis, to return
products according to a stock rotation policy. Typically, the value of the products returned cannot
exceed 10% of the previcus quarter’'s purchases, and the products returned must be new and in sealed
cartons. Some of our agreements with distributors require that these returns be accompanied by
offsetting orders of commensurate value. We record reductions to revenue for these rights when the
sale is made. We also record an atlowance for sales returns for our estimates of expected customer
product returns based on current sales and historical return rates. Since we have historically been able
to reliably estimate the amount of allowances required for future price adjustments and product returns,
we recognize revenue, net of projected allowances, upon shipment to our customers. We also record
estimated reductions to revenue for specifically-identified customer pricing agreements, such as
special pricing, price protection and volume-based incentives, at the time of shipment. These estimates
are based upon the expected rate of occurrence taking into consideration both historical and current
information.

Revenue from software sales is recognized when the criteria of Statement of Position No. 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition” have been met. These criteria include persuasive evidence of an
arrangement, delivery of the software, a fixed and determinable fee, probable collection and vendor-
specific objective evidence of fair value for undelivered elements. Vendor-specific objective evidence is
typically based on the price charged when an element is sold separately or, if an element is not sold
separately, on the price established by authorized management, if it is probable that the price, once
established, will not change before market introduction. We recognize revenue from software sales
upon delivery provided that there is no customer acceptance clause in the purchase order or contract,
there are no significant post-delivery obligations remaining, the price is fixed and collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. When significant post-delivery obligations exist, the related
revenue is deferred until such obligations are fulfilled. If there are customer acceptance criteria in the
contract, we recognize revenue upon end-user acceptance, which typically occurs after delivery and
installation are completed. Revenue from postcontract customer support agreements, which entitle
customers to both support and upgrades during the term of the agreement, when-and-if available, is
recognized ratably over the life of the agreement. EITF Issue Na. 03-5, “Applicability of AICPA
Statement of Position 97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an Arrangement Containing More-Than-
Incidental Software” affirms that the revenue recognition guidance in SOP 97-2 also applies to
non-software deliverables, such as computer hardware, in an arrangement if the software is essential
to the functionality of the non-software deliverables. We do not currently have any non-software
deliverables that are subject to the guidance of EITF 03-5.

Revenue from installations, professional services, repair and training is recognized when the wark
is completed. Generally, product installation is considered perfunctory and is treated as a separate
element from the product under EITF 00-21.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue primarily consists of unearned revenue from hardware service contracts and
software maintenance contracts, both of which are typically billed at the beginning of the contract term
and recognized ias revenue over the contract period. The remainder of the deferred revenue balance
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comprises certain software licenses and hardware purchases that require deferral under generally
accepted accounting principles if the criteria described in the Revenue Recognition policy above are
not met at the time the sale is made.

Indemnifications and Warranties

In the normal course of business, we are party to a variety of agreements under which we may be
obligated to indemnify the other party for certain matters. These obligations typically arise in contracts
where we customarily agree to hold the other party harmless against losses arising from a breach of
representations or covenants for certain matters such as title to assets and intellectual property rights
associated with the sale of products. The duration of these indemnifications varies, and in certain
cases, is indefinite. In each of these circumstances, payment by us depends upon the other party
making an adverse claim according to the procedures outlined in the particular agreement, which
procedures generally allow us to challenge the other party’s claims. In certain instances, we may have
recourse against third parties for payments made by us.

Based on historical experience, we do not believe any significant payments will result from these
indemnification obligations; accordingly, no amounts have been accrued for these provisions.
However, we do accrue losses for any known contingent liability, including those that may arise from
indemnification provisions, when future payment is both probable and reasonably estimable.

For our products, parts and labor are covered under warranty for periods between three months
and three years. A provision for internal labor costs and third party service costs related to warranty
expense is recorded when revenue is recognized. We hold service parts for maintenance that are used
to service our warranties and extended service contracts. The aggregate cost of these parts is
amortized over the estimated useful life of three to seven years. With respect to drives, tapes and disk
used in our products but manufactured by a third party, we provide to the customer a warranty on such
drives, tapes and disk that is substantially equivalent to the warranty provided by the manufacturer.

Changes in our accrued warranty balance for the year ended October 31, 2004 are as follows:

Balance at October 31,2003 .. ...\t $ 5,481
Accruals for warrantiesissued . ....... ... . 9,960
Settlements during the period .. ....... ... .. . .. (8,509)
Balance at October 31,2004 . . ... .. ... $ 6,932

Shipping Costs

The cost of shipping product to customers is included in cost of sales. Freight charged to
customers is included in net sales.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expense includes costs associated with direct marketing, telemarketing, trade shows,
promotions and public relations. These costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the
years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $7,214,000, $7,360,000 and $7,168,000,
respectively.
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Research and Development Costs

Expenditutes relating to the development of new products and processes are expensed as
incurred. These costs include expenditures for team member compensation, materials used in the
development effort, facilities and other internal costs, as well as expenditures for third party
professional services.

Fair Value off Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payabie and
accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these instruments.
Marketable securities are carried at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices. The fair value
of our investments in marketable securities is less than cost at October 31, 2004 and greater than cost
at October 31, 2003.

Concentrations

Our productts are concentrated in the data storage solutions industry, which is highly competitive
and rapidly changing. Significant technological changes in the industry could affect operating results
adversely. Ouriinventories include devices and components that may be subject to rapid technological
obsolescence. While we have programs to minimize the required inventories on hand and consider
technological obsolescence in estimating required allowances, such estimates could change in the
future. Additionally, we depend on a limited number of third-party manufacturers to supply us with our
devices, components and entry-level libraries. In many cases, specific versions of these components,
devices and libraries are customized and are available only from a single supplier. Therefore, loss of
certain suppliers could disrupt operations. We attempt to mitigate these risks by working closely with
and performing financial reviews of key and strategic suppliers and purchasing business interruption
insurance where appropriate.

We sell products to customers in a wide variety of industries on a worldwide basis. In countries or
industries where we are exposed to material credit risk, we require collateral, including cash deposits,
letters of credit and/or credit insurance, prior to the completion of a transaction. We do not believe
there is a credit risk beyond that provided for in the financial statements in the ordinary course of
business.

We sell our products primarily through third-party resellers ahd OEMs. Total sales to Dell and IBM,
our two largesticustomers, include OEM sales as well as sales of ADIC branded product. Dell and IBM
accounted for fiscal 2004 revenues of $109,935,000 (24%) and $96,448,000 (21%), respectively.
These two customers accounted for fiscal 2003 revenues of $103,317,000 (24%) and $96,118,000
(23%), respectively, and fiscal 2002 revenues of $63,518,000 (19%) and $86,211,000 (26%),
respectively. These two customers represented 44% and 49% of accounts receivable at October 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively.
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We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based upon our historical experience
and the expected collectibility of all outstanding accounts receivable. Allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable for the years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

Balance at Additions .
Beginning Charged to Balance at
of Year Income* Deductions* End of Year

(In thousands)

Allowance for doubtful accounts

receivable:
2004 ... $1,435 $ 211 $ 327 $1,319
2003 ... 1,379 14 (42) 1,435
2002 .. - 1,752 1,258 1,631 1,379

Deductions represent amounts written off against the allowance, net of recoveries. During fiscal
2003, due to strong collection activity, our accounts receivable customer balances were very
current and contributed to a lower allowance as a percentage of accounts receivable than we have
historically recorded. During fiscal 2002, the write off of a single customer balance accounted for
$1,239,000 of the deduction.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider any highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less at the
date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of investments in money market
funds, commercial paper and marketable debt securities that are readily convertible to cash without
penalty and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value in accordance with our cash management
policy. The objectives of our cash management policy are safety and preservation of funds, liquidity
sufficient to meet cash flow requirements and attainment of a market rate of return. Our cash and cash
equivalents balance consists of the following:

October 31, QOctober 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Cash . ... $ 94695 $ 95,447
Marketable debt securities .................. ... ..... 132,195 84,954

$226,800  $180,401

Cash equivalents exclude marketable debt securities with maturities of greater than three months
at the date of purchase. These securities are classified as marketable securities and are described in
Note 5.

Marketable Securities and Other Investments

At times we invest in certain marketable debt and equity securities. Equity securities consist of
stock in U.S. companies that operate in areas within our strategic focus. Debt securities consist of
investment-grade government and commercial securities purchased in accordance with our cash
management policy to generate a higher yield than cash equivalents. In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain investments in Debt and Equity
Securities,” such investments are classified as available-for-sale. Under SFAS 115, unrealized
investment gains and losses, net of taxes, are reflected as a net amount in a separate component of
shareholders’ equity until realized. For the purpose of computing realized gains and losses, costs are
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identified on a specific identification basis. We write down an investment and recognize a loss when
events indicate there has been an impairment of value which is other than temporary. We aiso hold
investments in |privately held early-stage technology companies and private technology venture limited
partnerships. These investments individually represent voting ownership interests of less than 20%.
Ownership interests in private technology limited partnerships are accounted for under the equity
method unless our interest is so minor (typically less than 5%) that we have virtually no influence over
the partnership operating and financial policies, in which case the cost method is used. Currently, our
investments injprivate technology limited partnerships are accounted for using the equity method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. We evaluate the need for
inventory allowances associated with obsolete, slow-moving and nonsalable inventory by reviewing
current transactions and forecasted product demand. Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory for
the years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

Balance at Additions
Beginning Charged to Balance at
of Year Income Deductions*  End of Year
(In thousands)
Allowance'for inventory obsolescence:
2004 ... $14,019 $3,335 $4,063 $13,291
2003 ... 10,713 4,334 1,028 14,019
2002 ... 7,388 4,173 848 10,713

*  Deductions represent dispositions of inventory written off against the allowance.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, except for property, plant and equipment of
acquired entities which has been reduced for certain negative goodwill associated with their acquisition
in fiscal 1998. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings . ... 2510 40 years
Machinery and equipment ......... ... ... . 3 to 10 years
Computer equipment ... ... . 3 to 5 years

Software ... e
Office furniture
Leasehold improvements . .......... ... .. . ...

3 to 10 years
310 10 years
Life of lease

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Gains and losses from
disposal in the amount of the difference between any proceeds received from the sale of property,
plant and equipment and net book value of the asset disposed are recorded in other income.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the recoverability of long-lived assets, including property and equipment and certain
identifiable intangible assets, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS 144 requires us to
review for impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

46




ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. When we determine that the carrying amount
of long-lived assets may not be recoverable, we assess the assets for impairment based on the
estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their
eventual disposition. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future undiscounted cash
flows, an impairment loss is recorded for the excess of the asset's carrying amount over its fair value.
Fair value is generally determined based on the estimated future discounted cash flows over the
remaining useful life of the asset using a discount rate determined by management to be
commensurate with the risk inherent in the business. We have not recorded any material impairment
losses.

Service Parts for Maintenance

Service parts for maintenance are valued at cost. Amortization of the aggregate service parts is
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three to seven years.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets resulting from past acquisitions include core technology, non-compete
agreements and goodwill, which were recorded at their fair value. In fiscal 2004 we acquired licensed
technology from an existing supplier. On November 1, 2002, we adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” which required us to
discontinue amortization of goodwill. As required by SFAS 142, intangible assets that do not meet the
criteria for recognition apart from goodwill must be reclassified. In applying these criteria, we
transferred net assembled workforce from intangible assets to goodwill in the first quarter of fiscal
2003. During the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we completed the initial assessment for impairment of
goodwill required upon implementation of SFAS 142 and concluded that goodwill was not impaired. We
are required to perform goodwill impairment tests on an annual basis or when indicators of impairment
exist. We performed our annual goodwill impairment test in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 and 2003
and concluded that goodwill was not impaired. There can be no assurance that future goodwill
impairment tests will not result in a charge to earnings. Intangible assets other than goodwill are
amortized over the periods estimated to be benefited as follows: core technology, seven years;
licensed technology, 51 months; non-compete agreements, 30 months.

The following table presents net income and net income per share for the years ended October 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 on a pro forma basis as if SFAS 142 had been adopted on November 1, 2001:

Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except
for per share data)

Netincome, asreported ....................... $7,735 $12,491  $1,560
Add back: amortization of goodwill (including
assembled workforce), netoftax .............. — — 282
Pro formanetincome .. ............. ... ... .... $7,735 $12,491 $1,842
Basic net income per share:
Asreported ............... ... ... ... ..., $012 $ 020 $ 003
Proforma............. ... ... .. $012 $ 020 $ 003
Diluted net income per share:
Asreported .......... ... ... $012 $ 020 $ 002
Proforma........... ... .. .. .. ... ......... $012 $ 020 $ 0.03
47




ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes has been recorded in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under the liability method of SFAS 109, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided on deferred tax
assets if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized.

Deferred taxes result from the difference between the tax basis and fair value of assets of
acquired entities, the unrealized gain or loss associated with investments in equity securities and from
the timing of tax deductions for depreciation, allowances and accrued expenses. In addition, we have
deferred taxes resulting from net operating loss and general business credit carryforwards.

Foreign Currency Translations

The financial statements of ADE, ADIC Germany and ADIC UK have been translated into U.S.
dollars in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52, “Foreign Currency
Translation.” Under the provisions of this statement, all assets and liabilities in the balance sheets of
these subsidiaries, whose functional currency is the euro for ADE and ADIC Germany and British
pound sterling for ADIC UK, are translated at year-end exchange rates, and translation gains and
losses are accumulated in a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Forward Contracts

Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are a result of the effect of exchange rate changes
on transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency, including U.S. dollars.
Gains and losses on those foreign currency transactions are included in determining net income or loss
for the period in which exchange rates change. In addition, we may enter into foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge transactions which are not otherwise offset. Foreign currency forward exchange
contracts represent agreements to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another
country at an agreed-upon price, on an agreed-upon settlement date. Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts are accounted for by the fair value method, and are typically three months or less
in length. There were no outstanding contracts at October 31, 2004 or 2003.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” all derivatives, whether designated in hedging
relationships or not, are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as
a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged item are recognized
in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the
derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income and are recognized in the income statement
when the hedged item affects earnings. Derivatives not designated or qualifying as a hedging
instrument are adjusted to fair value through earnings. We may, from time to time, enter into derivative
instruments to hedge against known or forecasted market exposures.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation plans are accounted for using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and by FASB
Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—an
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Interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25.” No stock-based compensation cost is reflected in net income,
as all stock options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to or greater than the
market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Had compensation cost for the
plans been determined based on the fair vaiue at the grant dates for awards under those plans
consistent with the method of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” our net income and basic and diluted net income per share would have
been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:
Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except
for per share data)

Netincome, asreported ...................... $7,735 $12,491 $ 1,560
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all

awards, netoftax................ ... ... .. (6,963) (6,663)  (8,990)
Pro forma netincome (loss) ................... $ 772 $ 5828 $(7,430)
Basic net income (loss) per share:
Asreported ....... ... .. ... ... ... ... $ 012 $ 020 $ 0.03
Proforma .......... ... ..cciieiiiinoin. $ 001 $ 009 $ (0.12)
Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Asreported ........ ... ..., $ 012 $ 020 §$ 0.02
Proforma ............... ... ... ... $ 001 $ 009 $ (012

The options granted during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 expire between sixteen months and ten
years after the grant date. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions and results
for options granted during the fiscal years presented:

Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002

Weighted average risk free interestrates .............. 3.51% 3.45% 3.93%
Expected dividend yield ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility ... ......... ... ... 78% 80% 82%
Expected lives (inyears) ........... ... ... ... ... ..., 5.2 6.0 47
Weighted average fair value, grants equal to fair market

ValUE ... $6.62 $6.24 $5.71
Weighted average fair value, grants greater than fair

marketvalue .......... ... ... . ... $274 $ — $ —

The fair value of each share purchased under our stock purchase plan is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions
and results for options granted during the fiscal years presented:

Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002

Weighted average risk free interestrates .............. 1.45% 1.11% 1.82%

Expected dividendyield .............. ... ... ... ... 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility . . ............. ... ... ... ... ..., 65% 70% 68%

Expected lives (inyears) .......... ... ... ... ..... 0.5 0.5 0.5

Weighted average fairvalue ........................ $3.40 $3.27 %264
49




ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions and
does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of fair value.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed based on the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period increased by the
weighted average number of common stock equivalents outstanding during the period, using the
treasury stock method.

Business Segments

We maintain single sales, marketing, research and development and administrative functions for
all of our sales and geographic regions. Management uses one measurement of profitability and does
not disaggregate its business for internal reporting. Based on the criteria of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,” we have determined that our company operates in one segment providing hardware and
software data storage solutions to the open systems marketplace.

Reclassification

Certain prior year information has been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2003, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 03-5, “Applicability of AICPA Statement
of Position 97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an Arrangement Containing More-Than-Incidental
Software.” EITF 03-5 affirms that the revenue recognition guidance in SOP 97-2 applies to
non-software deliverables, such as computer hardware, in an arrangement if the software is essential
to the functionality of the non-software deliverables. We adopted EITF 03-5 during the first quarter of
fiscal 2004. Under this pronouncement we will apply SOP 97-2 to any hardware that is software-related
and will recognize revenue accordingly. We do not currently have any non-software deliverables that
meet the EITF 03-5 definition of “software-related;” therefore, to date, the adoption of this accounting
principle has not had a significant impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition,”
which supercedes Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.”
SAB 104’s primary purpose is to rescind accounting guidance contained in SAB 101 related to multiple
element revenue arrangements, superceded as a result of the issuance of EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” Although SAB 104 incorporates guidance
prescribed by EITF 00-21, the revenue recognition principles of SAB 101 remain largely unchanged by
the issuance of SAB 104. Given this, the issuance of SAB 104 has not had a significant impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

In March 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments.” EITF 03-1 provides guidance on
other-than-temporary impairment models for marketable debt and equity securities accounted for under
SFAS 115 and non-marketable equity securities accounted for under the cost method. The EITF
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developed a basic three-step model to evaluate whether an investment is other-than-temporarily
impaired. In September 2004, the FASB approved the issuance of FASB Staff Position EITF 03-1-1,
which delays the effective date until additional guidance is issued for the application of the recognition
and measurement provisions of EITF 03-1 to investments in securities that are impaired. The adoption
of this accounting principle is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 151,
“Inventory Costs—an Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.” This statement clarifies the accounting
for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage, requiring these
items be recognized as current-period charges. In addition, this statement requires that allocation of
fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the
production facilities. The provisions of this statement are effective for inventory costs incurred during
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005 and will become effective for ADIC beginning in fiscal 2006.
The adoption of this accounting principle is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial
position or results of operations. '

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R,
"Share-Based Payment (Revised 2004).” This statement addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions in which a company receives employee services in exchange for the company’s
equity instruments or liabilities that are based on the fair value of the company’s equity securities or
may be settled by the issuance of these securities. SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for
share-based compensation using APB 25 and generally requires that such transactions be accounted
for using a fair value method. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005 and will become effective for ADIC beginning
with the fourth quarter of our 2005 fiscal year. We have not yet determined which transition method we
will use to adopt SFAS 123R. Assuming the modified prospective method with no restatement is used,
we will record stock compensation expense of approximately $6.5 million between the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005 through fiscal 2008 for stock awards outstanding as of October 31, 2004. The full impact
that the adoption of this statement will have on our financial position and results of operations will be
determined by share-based payments granted in future periods.

2. Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

Our financial statements for the years ended October 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 have been
restated to correct our accounting for our investment in a private technology venture limited
partnership. During fiscal 2004, we determined that our investment in Frazier Technology Venture
Fund I (FTVI), a limited partnership, has been improperly accounted for since fiscal 2000. We initially
accounted for our investment under the cost method since our ownership interest in FTVI is less than
20% and we do not have significant influence over the partnership’s operating and financial policies.
Subsequently it was determined that the equity method is appropriate under EITF Topic D-46,
“Accounting for Limited Partnership Investments,” because our limited partnership ownership interest is
greater than 5%. In addition, we reclassified $5,335,000 from current deferred income taxes to
noncurrent deferred income taxes unrelated to the FTVI adjustment.
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The following table summarizes the impact of this restatement on our financial statements for the
fiscal years ended October, 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

As Reported As Restated
{In thousands)

At October 31, 2001:

Deferred income taxes, noncurrent .. ............ $ 7,766 $ 8,039
Investments ....... ... ... .. . i 9,953 9,172
Retainedeamings ..............ccooivivueen... 106,599 106,091
At October 31, 2002:
Deferred income taxes, noncurrent .............. 3,347 3,620
Investments .......... e 10,928 10,147
Retainedearnings ............. ... ... ... .... 108,159 107,651
At October 31, 2003:
Deferred income taxes, current ................. 13,638 8,303
Deferred income tax asset (liability), noncurrent . . .. (2,507) 3,101
Investments . ....... ... ... .. . e 3,728 2,947
Retainedearnings . .......... .. .. L 120,650 120,142

3. Business:Combinations

In March 2002, we paid $1.8 million in cash to acquire the intellectual property and assets and hire
the engineering and product management personnel of V-Stor LLC, a privately held company based in
California. V-Stor developed disk-based data protection products for the open systems market. Our
V-Stor-based development effort includes software that allows disk-based storage to look and act like
tape systems to traditional backup applications in order to aliow disk to be utilized easily in existing
data protection systems. The V-Stor technology has been integrated into new products, including
products that combine disk and tape for backup. This acquisition was accounted for as a purchase
business combination. We expensed $1.5 million of the total purchase consideration. These acquisition
charges relate ito acquired in-process research and development and compensation to V-Stor
personnel. The acquired technology had not reached technological feasibility and has no alternative
future use. The valuation of the acquired in-process research and development was based on our
estimates and a valuation by a third-party appraiser.

4. Benchmark Outsourcing Agreement

In November 2003, we expanded an existing outsource manufacturing relationship with
Benchmark Electronics, Inc. to include final assembly and test of a significant portion of our entry-level
and workgroup tape automation product line. In connection with this expansion, we transferred to
Benchmark approximately 150 team members associated with manufacturing, test and supply chain
management. Benchmark assumed the lease on our Redmond, Washington manufacturing facility and
purchased inventory associated with the product line and property, plant and equipment related to the
operation for $15.1 million in cash. Assets held for sale at October 31, 2003 related to this transaction
and were comprised of the following:

Amount
, (In thousands)
Ve OrieS ... $ 8,454
Property, plantand equipment . ........... ... .. ... ... .. . 4,052
Less: accrued liabilities . .......... . ... .. (122)
$12,384
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The $15.1 million purchase price exceeded the $12.4 million of assets held for sale as of October
31, 2003 primarily due to the fact that certain inventory purchased during November 2003 was sold to
Benchmark. In June 2004, we further expanded our existing outsource relationship to incorporate
screening and repair of certain entry-level and workgroup tape automation products. In connection with
this expansion, we transferred to Benchmark certain team members from our customer service and
repair operations in Redmond. Additionally, Benchmark purchased certain inventory and property,
plant and equipment associated with these operations for $1.6 million in cash. There was no gain or
loss recorded on any of these transactions.

5. Investments in Marketable Securities and Other Investments

We classify all of our marketable securities as available-for-sale because we intend to maintain a
liquid portfolio to take advantage of investment opportunities. The cost, fair value and unrealized gains
and losses of marketable securities are summarized as follows:

Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in thousands)

October 31, 2004:
Municipal obligations ... ...... $ 6,049 $— $(6) $ 6,043

October 31, 2003:
U.S. government and agency

obligations ............... $ 4,007 $44 $— $ 4,051
Municipal obligations .. ....... 13,332 13 — 13,345
Corporate obligations ........ 3,214 15 — 3,229
Equity securities ............ 161 2 = 163

$20,714 ﬂf $— $20,788

Consistent with our investment policy, investment maturities do not exceed 24 months at the date
of purchase. All marketable debt securities have maturities of less than one year as of October 31,
2004.

During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, we sold certain current marketable securities and realized
gains and losses as follows:

Realized Realized Net
Gains Losses Gains
: (In thousands)
2004 . $ 52 $ (4 $ 48
2003 .. e 1,738 (249) 1,489
2002 .. 3,675 (3) 3,672

From time to time, we make other strategic investments that are accounted for under the cost
method. We review these non-marketable investments on a regular basis to determine if there has
been any impairment of value which is other than temporary by reviewing their financial information,
gaining knowledge of any new financing or other business agreements and assessing their operating
viability. In fiscal 2002, we wrote down our strategic investment portfolio by $750,000 to reflect such
impairment and recorded this write-down as a component of our net gain on securities transactions.
We did not record any write downs during fiscal 2004 or 2003. In November 2002, one of our strategic
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investments was converted to cash and marketable equity securities with a combined value of
$8,351,000, and we recorded a gain on securities transactions of $651,000. During the remainder of
fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004, we received additional shares of marketable equity securities under
earnout and escrow provisions of the November 2002 investment transaction noted above and
recorded additional gains on securities transactions of $582,000 and $823,000, respectively, upon the
receipt of these shares.

We also hold strategic investments in private technology venture limited partnerships that are
accounted for under the equity method. During fiscal 2004, we recorded a $799,000 loss on equity
investment reflecting a reduction in the value of investments related to our $5,000,000 fiscal 2000
commitment to participate in a limited partnership. No gains or losses were recorded in fiscal 2003 or
2002.

At October 31, 2001 we recorded a liability of $4,272,000 for cash received related to the sale of
derivative financial instruments on certain marketable equity securities held by us. As the derivatives
matured during the first half of fiscal 2002, the recorded liability of $4,272,000 was recorded as a gain
on securities transactions. In addition, we received $288,000 in cash related to the sale of derivatives
in fiscal 2002 and recognized that as a gain on securities transactions during the year.

6. Inventories
Inventories are comprised of the following:
October 31, October 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Finishedgoods ............ ... .. ... ... .. .. .. ..... $ 27,976 $ 30,858
WOTK-IN-PrOCESS . ..ot v ettt 173 622
Rawmaterials ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ....... 23,870 18,275
52,019 49,755
Allowance for inventory obsolescence . ................ (13,291) (14,019)

$ 38,728 $35,736

7. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, pflant and equipment consists of the following:
October 31, October 31,
2003

2004
(In thousands)
Landand building ..... ... ... ... ... ... ... L $ 1,010 $ 1,141
Machinery and equipment .. . ........................ 31,071 31,593
Office equipment, including purchased software ........ 38,307 33,146
Leasehold improvements ........................... 6,726 5,766
‘ 77,114 71,646
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ (31,201) (26,141)

$ 45,913 $ 45,505

Depreciation and amortization expense was $14,929,000, $14,675,000 and $10,627,000 in fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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8. Service Parts for Maintenance

Service parts for maintenance consists of the following:

Service parts for maintenance

Accumulated amortization

October 31, October 31,
2004 2003
{In thousands)
$ 60,035 $ 49,351
(30,042)  (20,924)
$ 29,993 $ 28,427

Amortization expense was $8,930,000, $5,721,000 and $4,874,000 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.

9. Intangible and Other Assets

Intangible and other assets consists of the following:

Core technology
Licensed technology
Non-compete agreements
Other assets

October 31, 2004

October 31, 2003

Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Amount  Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(In thousands) (In thousands)
. $3,804 $(2,762) $1,042 $3,804 $(2,218)  $1,586
. 1,000 (117) 883 —_— —_ —
. — — — 50 (32) 18
. 85 — 85 98 — 98
$4,889 $(2,879) $2,010 $3,952 $(2,250) $1,702

Non-compete agreements became fully amortized during fiscal 2004. We recorded intangible
amortization expense of $679,000, $618,000 and $1,314,000 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Total expected future amortization related to intangible assets is provided in the following

table:
Year Ended October 31,

10. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities are comprised of the following:

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Warranties . ...........
Taxes, other than income
Other
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Amortization
(In thousands)

$779

733

235

178

October 31, October 31,
2004 2003
(In thousands)

$ 7,071 $12,157
6,932 5,481
586 920
2,446 1,095
$17,035 $19,653
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11. Credit Agreements and Long-term Debt
Credit Agreements

We had borrowings under two operating lines provided by German banks that were repaid in full
during fiscal 2003.

. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at October 31, 2003 primarily represented a loan payable to a German bénk,
which was collateralized by the German manufacturing facility with a net book value of $3,247,000 at
October 31, 2003. This loan was repaid in full during fiscal 2004.

12. Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Current income tax:

US.Federal ............. ... .. $1,969 $(4,190) $(7,100)
Foreign . ... e 996 1,457 (332)
Stateandlocal ............ ... .. .. ... i 225 238 230
Totalcurrent ... ... . ... .. . 3,190 (2,495) (7,202)
Deferred income tax:
US. Federal ... ... . .. (1,579) 4,635 4,096
Foreign ... ... (897) 880 (7)
Stateandlocal .............. .. ... .. ... . L (150) — —
Tax contingencyrelease .......................... (2,706) — —
Totaldeferred .......... . ... ... ... .. ... ... ..., (5,332) 5,515 4,089
Total provision (benefit) forincome taxes ................ $(2,142) $ 3,020 $(3,113)

The provision (benefit) for federal income tax differs from the amount computed by applying the
applicable statutory income tax rate to income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes for the
following reasons:

Years Ended October 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Federal income tax at statutoryrate . . ................... $1958 $5429 §$ (491)
Impact of foreign operations . ............ ... ... .. ..., (6) 115 53
Foreigntaxicredit .. ....... ... ... . . i i (802) — —
Tax exempt interestincome ...................cooo.... (458) (261) (298)
Research and developmenttax credits .................. (1,011)  (1,961)  (1,547)
Activity of foreign subsidiaries ................ ... .. ..., ' (112) (672) (1,169)
State income taxes ........ e (389) 165 150
Change in valuation allowance ......................... 1,187 — —
Tax contingencyrelease .......... .. ... (2,700) — —
Other . . 197 115 - 189

$(2,142) $3,020 $(3,113)
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax

assets at October 31, 2004 and 2003 are:

Deferred tax assets:

October 31, October 31,
2004 2003
{Restated)

(In thousands)

Allowance for inventory and spareparts .............. ... .. .. ...... $11,264  $ 9,107
Team member compensated absences . .............. ..., 342 301
Warranties . ... 1,765 1,142
Allowances for bad debt and salesreturns . ......... ... ... .. ... .... 1,276 1,255
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards ......................... 13,817 5,905
Lease terminationaccrual ......... ... ... .. . . .. 176 353
Asset acquisition . ... .. 338 365
Deferredrevenue ...... ... ... ... . . . . o e 1,900 —
Gain from partnership interest(1) ......... .. ... .. ... ... ... . L 370 108
Unrealized investmentlosses .......... ... .. 1,572 —
Foreign tax credit related to partnershipinterest . . .......... ... ... .. 681 —
Other . .. 173 —
Gross deferredtaxassets ........... .. ... ... 33,674 18,536
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance ............................ (1,187) —
Netdeferredtaxassets ........ ... .. ... . ... ... .. ... . ... 32,487 18,536
Deferred tax liabilities:
Plantand equipment ... ... .. . e (7,452) (5,629)
Intangible and otherassets .......... ... ... .. ... ... . ... (367) (553)
Unrealized investmentgains ........... .. ... . i i i — (82)
Other....................... e (450) (868)
Gross deferred tax liabilities .......... ... ... .. ... L. (8,269) (7,132)
Net deferred incometaxes . ........ .. ... ... i .. $24,218  $11,404

(1) See Note 2 for additional information.

Deferred U.S. income taxes are not provided for the earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because
we expect those earnings will be permanently reinvested. The domestic and foreign components of

income (loss) before income taxes are as follows:

Domestic ..................... PP
Foreign ...

Years Ended October 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
$6,095 §$ 9558 § (701)
(502) 5,953 (852)
$5,593 $15,511  $(1,553)

Due to one of our acquisitions we have net loss carryforwards of approximately $3,084,000 that
start to expire in 17 years. Due to two other acquisitions we have net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $9,438,000 that expire in 15 years. We also have net loss carryforwards from the prior
year of approximately $9,847,000 that expire in 19 years. Although realization is not assured,
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management believes, based on its current expectations and tax planning strategies, that it is more
likely than not that the net deferred tax assets related to these net loss carryforwards will be realized.

During fiscal 2004, we recorded a valuation allowance of $1,187,000 to reduce our deferred tax
assets relating to our foreign tax credits and selected state net operating losses hecause we believe it
is more likely than not that these assets will not be realized. We do not have a valuation allowance on
any other deferred tax assets because we believe that the assets are more likely than not to be
realized. While we have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax
planning strategies in assessing the appropriateness of a valuation allowance, in the event we were to
determine that we would have a change in the realization of the net deferred tax asset in the future, an
adjustment to the deferred tax asset or valuation allowance would be made.

Also during fiscal 2004 we recorded a $2,706,000 tax benefit for the release of a tax contingency
related to the favorable outcome of tax audits that have been concluded. .

13. Net Income Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share.

Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except
for per share data)

Numerator:

NetiNCOME . .o $ 7,735 $12,491 $ 1,560
Denominator:

Denominator for basic net income per share—weighted average

SNAreS . 64,023 62,569 62,304
Dilutive potential common shares from team member (employee)
stockoptions . ... ... . . 771 995 1,196
Denominator for diluted net income per share—adjusted weighted
average shares and assumed conversions .................. 64,794 63,564 63,500
Basicnetincome pershare . ............ i, $ 012 $ 020 $ 0.03
Diluted netincome pershare ......... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... $ 012 $ 020 $ 0.02

14. Capital Stock
Share Repurchase Program

In May 2002, our board of directors announced a stock repurchase program, and in May 2004, the
number of total shares available for repurchase was increased to an additional 5,000,000 shares
above the 1,406,900 that had previously been repurchased under the program. The repurchase
program permits open market purchases from time to time and remains in effect until the total
authorized number of shares have been repurchased or until earlier termination by the board of
directors. As of October 31, 2004, a total of 3,989,607 shares remained available for repurchase.

Notes Receivable from Shareholders

During October 2001, we entered into five separate recourse note receivable agreements with
team members, four of whom were officers of ADIC, totaling $1,690,000 in connection with the
exercise of options. The notes bore interest at 6.5% per annum and were all repaid during fiscal 2002.
These notes were included as a reduction to shareholders’ equity.
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Shareholder Rights Plan

In July 1996, our board of directors adopted a shareholder rights plan in which preferred stock
purchase rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of ADIC common
stock. The shareholder rights plan is designed to deter coercive takeover tactics and ensure that the
board of directors can adequately protect the interests of the shareholders in the event of a takeover
attempt.

Pathlight Escrow Shares

In May 2001, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Pathlight Technology, Inc. We exchanged
10.3 million shares of ADIC common stock for all of the outstanding stock, warrants and stock options
of Pathlight. During fiscal 2001, the 10.3 million shares were reduced by approximately 500,000 shares
returned in connection with the settlement of certain litigation. During fiscal 2002, an additional 55,282
shares were canceled as a result of the settlement of escrow claims.

Stock Warrants

In connection with our acquisition of Pathlight on May 11, 2001, we assumed all outstanding
warrants to purchase shares of common stock of Pathlight. Accordingly, after applying the applicable
conversion ratio to the outstanding Pathlight warrants, we assumed warrants providing for the issuance
of an aggregate of 308,291 shares of ADIC common stock at prices ranging from $1.235 to $7.401 per
share. In June 2004, all remaining outstanding warrants expired without being exercised.

15. Stock-based Compensation Plans

At October 31, 2004, we had five stock option plans. Since its initial approval by our shareholders
in February 2000, the large majority of new stock option grants have been made under our 1999 Stock
Incentive Compensation Plan (1999 Plan). Additionally, from time to time new stock option grants are
made from our 1996 Stock Option Plan (1996 Plan) as shares become available under that plan due to
cancellation or expiration of outstanding options. In addition to these two plans, we also assumed a
plan in connection with our acquisition of MountainGate in September 1999 and we assumed the
outstanding options under 1997 Pathlight Technology Plan (Pathlight Plan) in connection with our
acquisition of Pathlight in May 2001. The Pathlight Plan consisted of options to purchase 520,502
shares. Substantially all of the options granted under that plan were incentive stock options with a ten-
year life that became fully vested upon the acquisition. In fiscal 2002, the board of directors approved
the 2002 Team Member Retention Stock Option Plan (2002 Plan), under which 540,000 shares were
authorized for issuance upon exercise of options granted to existing team members. We will not make
any additional grants under the Pathlight Plan or the 2002 Plan.

The terms of our 1996 Plan, 1999 Plan and 2002 Plan require the option price to be equal to or
greater than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Options may be
exercisable for all or part of the shares as determined by the individual option agreement; the majority
of the options issued under these plans vest 25% per year for four years. Options granted prior to
August 2002 typically expire five years from the grant date, and options granted during or subsequent
to August 2002 typically expire ten years from the grant date. All options granted under these plans
have been nongualified stock options. As of October 31, 2004, under all of our plans, options to
purchase an aggregate of 7,156,000 shares were outstanding, and options to purchase an additional
3,462,000 shares were authorized for future grants under the plans.
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Additionally, eligible team members may purchase shares of common stock on favorable terms
through payroll deductions in accordance with our 1997 Stock Purchase Plan. This plan provides that
the purchase price of the stock must not be less than 85% of the fair market value of the common
stock on the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is lower. Under this plan, 282,000,
422,000 and 286,000 shares of stock were issued during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Options granted, exercised and canceled under all of our stock option plans are summarized as
follows:

Weighted Avérage

Options Exercise Price
(In thousands)

Balance at October 31,2001 ................. 8,372 $13.27
Optionsgranted ........................ 2,884 8.83
Options exercised ...................... (898) 3.08
Optionscanceled ....................... (710) 15.25
Options expired ........................ (126) 25.80

Balance at October 31,2002 ................. 9,522 12.56
Optionsgranted ........................ 948 8.90
Options exercised ...................... (1,512) 3.98
Optionscanceled ....................... (622) 12.75
Optionsexpired ........................ (253) 18.67

Balance at October 31,2003 ................. 8,083 13.51
Options granted, equal to fair market

value .. 912 9.39
Options granted, greater than fair market
value ... 178 9.98
Options exercised . ..................... (761) 7.11
Optionscanceled ........... ... ... ... (691) 12.39
Optionsexpired ........................ (565) 18.48
Balance at October 31,2004 ................. 7,156 13.31

At October 31, 2004, a total of 3,998,000 options were exercisable at a weighted average exercise
price of $16.12. At October 31, 2003 a total of 3,711,000 options were exercisable at a weighted
average exercise price of $15.60.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at October 31, 2004

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Range of Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Prices OQutstanding  Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
(In thousands) (In thousands)

$0.1230-$3.4560 ............ 68 60 mos $ 2.1289 68 $ 2.1289
$5.2500-$7.7100 ............ 933 90 mos $ 5.6249 383 $ 5.5905
$8.2600-%$11.5250 ........... 3,185 60 mos $ 9.7090 1,017 $10.1920
$12.4400-%1310625 ........... 1,754 20 mos $14.3768 1,408 $14.3133
$20.0625-%$27.7190 ........... 868 8 mos $25.3840 774 $25.7506
$33.6250-$3316250 ........... 348 4 mos $33.6250 348 $33.6250

60




ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

16. Bonus Plan

We currently have a non-contributory bonus plan for all team members except certain team
members based outside the United States and commissioned staff. Distributions under the bonus plan
are generally based upon a combination of team member salaries and achievement of individual and
Company performance goals. For certain high-level team members, the board frequently establishes a
threshold level of financial performance that must be achieved before distributions are made under the
bonus plan. With the exception of amounts guaranteed to certain new hires, no distributions were paid
to these high-level team members for fiscal 2004 or 2002. We achieved a significant number of our
financial and non-financial performance goals during fiscal 2003. Therefore, all eligible team members
received a partial payout of their target bonus for fiscal 2003. ADIC’s contributions to the plan totaled
$185,000, $6,742,000 and $276,000 for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

17. Defined Contribution 401(k) Plan

We offer a defined contribution 401(k) plan for our team members in the United States as well as
certain team members outside of the United States. ADIC’s matching contributions to the plan were
$1,596,000, $1,320,000, and $1,244,000 for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

18. Commitments and Contingencies

As of October 31, 2004 we leased facilities in Redmond, Washington; Englewood, Colorado;
Ithaca, New York; Santa Clara, California; Richardson, Texas; Burnsville, Minnesota; Munich,
Germany; Paris, France; and London, England, for administrative, sales and marketing, research and
development, operations and warehouse activities. Additional sales and service offices are leased at
various sites in the United States, Europe and Asia.

Our noncancelable operating leases, some of which include escalation clauses, have terms
ranging from fiscal 2005 through 2014. Minimum annual future rental commitments for these leases at
October 31, 2004, are shown in the following table:

Year Ended October 31, Amount
(In thousands)
200G $4,871
20068 . e 4,276
2007 ... ES 3,420
2008 2,629
2000 L 2,148
Thereafter . ... ... . 4,659

Rent expense aggregated $5,816,000 in fiscal 2004, $6,110,000 in fiscal 2003 and $5,909,000 in
fiscal 2002.

During fiscal 2001 we recorded a $2,318,000 liability to reflect anticipated costs to exit a
manufacturing and development site in Englewood, Colorado which was replaced by a larger facility in
Englewood in fiscal 2002. These accrued costs represents our estimate of the net amount of lease
payments related to unused capacity of the old facility. During fiscal 2004, we made payments of
$718,000, $511,000 of which related to unused capacity in the facility. This $511,000 reduced the
liability from $1,008,000 at October 31, 2003 to $497,000 at October 31, 2004. During fiscal 2003, we
made payments of $633,000, all of which related to unused capacity in the facility. This $633,000
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reduced the lability from $1,641,000 at October 31, 2002 to $1,008,000 at October 31, 2003. We
believe the remaining liability of $497,000 at October 31, 2004 is adequate to cover the cost of unused
capacity in the facility through the end of the lease term in December 2006.

We are obligated to make four remaining annual payments of $200,000 through fiscal 2008 for a
$1,000,000 patent license that is recorded as an intangible asset. These future obligations are
recorded in accounts payable and other long-term liabilities at October 31, 2004.

As of October 31, 2004, we had commitments to provide an additional $2,710,000 in capital
funding towards strategic investments we currently hold in two limited partnership venture capital
funds. We will invest funds as requested until our remaining commitments are satisfied.

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings and governmental investigations that arise
in the ordinary course of business. We do not expect any of these proceedings or investigations to
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, liquidity or operating results.
However, legal claims and governmental investigations are inherently uncertain, and we cannot assure
you that we willinot be adversely affected in the future by such events.

19. Geographic Information

Major operations outside the United States consist of ADE in France, ADIC Germany and ADIC
UK, all of which:are wholly owned subsidiaries. Certain information regarding operations in this
geographic segment is presented in the table below. Transfers between geographic segments are
made at arms-length prices consistent with rules and regulations of governing tax authorities. The
profits on these transfers are not recognized until sales are made to non-affiliated customers.

Excluded from U.S. net sales are transfers from the U.S. to ADE, ADIC Germany and ADIC UK of
$42,797,000, $42,004,000 and $27,263,000 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Included in
U.S. sales are export sales to unaffiliated customers of $72,274,000, $64,102,000 and $76,959,000 in
fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Sales to OEMs, where ownership transfers at a third party
warehouse, are 'not necessarily reflective of the final destination of the product.

International sales are comprised of U.S. export sales to unaffiliated customers and sales of our
non-U.S. subsidiaries. Total international sales were $159,228,000, $147,658,000 and $138,434,000 in
fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Included in the following table are net sales and long-lived
assets attributed to our entities based on country of domicile:

Years Ended October 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Net sales:
UrnitedStates ....................... $367,865 $340,442 $276,124
Europe........ .. ... ... oo 86,954 83,556 61,475

$454,819 $423,998 $337,599

Long-lived assets:
United States ....................... $ 59,991 § 60,930 $ 64,756
Europe.......... ... o oo 20,521 17,300 11,787

$ 80512 § 78230 $ 76,543

62




ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

20. Quarterly Information (unaudited)

Netsales ......................
Grossoprofit ....................
Operating profit (loss)
Netincome (loss) . ...............
Basic net income (loss) per share
Diluted net income (loss) per share .

Netsales ......................
Grossprofit................... ..
Operating profit
Netincome .....................
Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share

2004
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(In thousands, except for per share data)
..... $118,305 $111,067 $110,034 $115,413
..... $ 34319 § 31,325 § 29,647 $ 33,940
..... $ 4663 $ (1,420) $ (3,263) $ 2,248
..... $ 4768 $ (1,320) $ (1,406) $ 5,693
..... $ 007 $ (002 $ (002 $ 0.09
..... $ 007 $ (002) $ (002 $ 0.09
2003
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(In thousands, except for per share data)
...... $97.,096 $100,642 $108,259 $118,001
...... $29,856 $ 32,914 $ 32,576 $ 36,531
...... $ 436 $ 2259 § 2287 $ 4,494
...... $1686 $ 2419 $ 2635 $ 5751
...... $ 003 $ 004 $ 004 $ 009
...... $ 003 $ 004 $ 004 $ 009

Our financial results for the first three quarters of fiscal 2004 have been restated for the accounting
change described in Note 2. The following table summarizes the impact of the restatement on our

consolidated financial statements as reported in our reports on Form 10-Q for such quarters:

Q1

Q2

Q3

As Reported As Restated As Reported As Restated As Reported As Restated

Investments ........... $ 4,021
Deferred income taxes,

noncurrent .......... $ 2492
Retained earnings . . .. . . §125,554
Gain (loss) on securities

and investment

transactions, net ..... $ 871
Other income

{expense) ........... $ 2201
Provision (benefit) for

income taxes ........ $ 1,960
Net income (loss) ...... $ 4,904
Basic net income (loss)

pershare ........... $ 0.08
Diluted net income (loss)

pershare ........... $ 0.08

(In thousands, except for per share data)

$ 3030 $ 4021 $ 3005 $ 4,161
$ 2145 $ 2515 § 2159 § 2,523
$124,910 $124250 $123,590 $122,967
$ 661 $ — $§ (25 $ —
$ 1991 $ (536) $ (561) $ 716
$ 1886 $ (652) $ (661) $ (1,264)
$ 4,768 $ (1,304) $ (1,320) $ (1,283)
$ 007 $ (0.02) $ (0.02) $ (0.02)
$ 007 $ (0.02) $ (002 $ (0.02)
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Overview

As more fully described in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report,
we improperly recorded our investment in a limited partnership technology fund under the cost method
of accounting since fiscal 2000 rather than under the equity method of accounting. Because the
cumulative amount of previously unrecorded losses would have resulted in a material decrease to pre-
tax income for the fourth quarter of 2004, we concluded it was necessary to restate certain amounts in
our QOctober 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet and changes in statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and interim periods within the year ended October 31, 2004 as more fully
described in Notes 2 and 20 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2005, in connection with the restatement referred to above, our independent registered
public accounting firm reported to our Audit Committee a matter involving internal controls which our
independent registered public accounting firm considered to be a material weakness in our financial
reporting process, as defined by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) in
Auditing Standard No. 2. As defined by the PCAOB, a material weakness is a significant deficiency, or
combination of sighificant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. Our
management and the Audit Committee agreed with our independent registered public accounting firm
on the matter raised in their report and agreed to address the deficiency. The internal control structure
deficiency identified by our independent registered public accounting firm was one that the design of
our internal control structure did not include a formalized process for: a) documentary evidence of the
review by individuals with appropriate financial reporting expertise of transactions occurring outside our
normal core business operations to ensure they are accounted for in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), b) documentary evidence,
including supervisory review, of the reading of all related documents by qualified financial reporting
staff and ¢) documentary evidence of the results of the related research and analysis of the appropriate
authoritative accounting guidance and the conclusions reached regarding the application of GAAP to
these transactions.

To remediate this internal control deficiency, management has commenced implementation of the

following measures: -

» For material transactions that are unique or outside our core operations, we will document our
process for identifying and accounting for such transactions. We will document and improve
our process for researching the applicable accounting literature and documenting our
conclusions. We will prepare a standardized memorandum that is required to be completed for
each transaction that is unique or outside our normal core operations. This memo will include
documentation of all key terms, the background of the transaction, analysis of any accounting
issues, research of accounting guidance and a final conclusion. This memo will be reviewed
and approved by the Vice President of Finance and the Chief Financial Officer.

+  We will enhance formal communication with, and approval by, our Chief Financial Officer and
Audit Committee of our application of GAAP and accounting policy decisions for transactions
that are otitside our core operations.

Evaluation of Disf_closure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chair and Chief Executive
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Officer along with our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15.

In light of the issues referenced above, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
believe that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at a reasonable assurance level
as of the end of the period covered by this report, due to the existence of the internal control deficiency
described above. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer however believe that when
implemented the remediation measures will address the internal control deficiency described above
and will allow us to conclude that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective at a reasonable
level of assurance at future filing dates.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended October 31, 2004, there were no significant changes in our internal
control over financial reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, an
internal contro!l over financial reporting.

We intend to review and evaluate the design and effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures on an ongoing basis and to improve our controls and procedures over time and to correct
any deficiencies that we may discover in the future. Our goal is to ensure that our senior management
has timely access to all material financial and non-financial information concerning our business.
Future events affecting our business may cause us to modify our disclosure controls and procedures.

We are in the process of implementing the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, which requires our management to assess the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial
reporting and include an assertion in our annual report as to the effectiveness of our controls.
Subsequently, our independent registered public accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will be
required to attest to whether our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial
reporting is fairly stated in all material respects and separately report on whether they believe we
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal controls over financial reporting as of October 31,
2005. We are in the process of performing the system and process documentation, evaluation and
testing required for management to make this assessment and for the auditors to provide their
attestation report. We have not completed this process or our assessment, and this process will require
significant amounts of management time and resources. In the course of evaluation and testing,
management or our independent registered public accountants may identify deficiencies that will need
to be addressed and remediated.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.,

PART Ill

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this ltem will be included in our Proxy Statement to be filed in
connection with our annual meeting of shareholders to be held on March 10, 2005 and is incorporated
herein by reference to the sections entitied “Election of Directors,” “Board of Directors, Committees and
Corporate Governance,” “Executive Officers,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” and “Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics” in the Proxy Statement. Such Proxy
Statement will be filed within 120 days of our fiscal year end, October 31, 2004.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled
“Compensation of Directors,” “Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Report of the Compensation
Committee on Annual Compensation,” and “Performance Graph” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Shareholder Matters

information required by this [tem is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled
“Security Ownership of Management and Principal Shareholders” in the Proxy Statement.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the Company’s equity
compensation plans in effect as of October 31, 2004 that provide for the award of securities or the
grant of options, warrants or rights to purchase the securities to employees of the Company or its
subsidiaries or to any other person.

(a) (b) (c)
Number of securities Number of securities
to be issued upon remaining available for future
exercise of Weighted-average issuance under equity
outstanding options, exercise price of compensation plans
warrants and outstanding options, (excluding securities reflected
Plan Category rights(#) warrants and rights($) in column (a))(#)
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders ............. 6,585,716 $13.50 4,981,002(1)(2)(3)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders . . . .. 501,450(4) $12.40(4) 314,118
Total ..o 7,087,166 . $13.42 5,295,120(1)(2)(3)

(1) Under the 1999 Stock {ncentive Plan, a maximum of 1,200,000 shares of common stock may be
issued as stock awards. To date, no stock awards have been issued under this Plan.

(2) Includes 1,833,529 shares of common stock that may be issued under the Company’s 1997 Stock
Purchase Plan, which is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Code.

(3) Pursuant to a program administered under the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the
“Program”) each director who is not an employee of the Company (an “Eligible Director”) will
automatically receive a nonqualified stock option to purchase 24,000 shares of common stock
upon his or her initial election or appointment. The Program also provides for an automatic annual
grant of options to purchase 6,000 shares of common stock to each Eligible Director on the date of
each annual meeting of shareholders.

(4) In connection with the acquisition of Pathlight Technologies, Inc. in May 2001, the Company
assumed stock options that had been issued by Pathlight. As of October 31, 2004, assumed
options to purchase 68,452 shares of common stock remained outstanding. These outstanding
assumed options have a weighted average exercise price of $2.13 per share. If an assumed
option is not exercised, no additional option to purchase shares of our common stock will be
issued in place of such unexercised option. The above table does not include any information
about these assumed options.

Description of Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders
2002 Team Member Retention Stock Option Plan

The Company’s corporate philosophy is to pay salaries at a rate that is at the low end of
competitive rates and grant options to enhance retention of key personnel. The depressed price of the
Company’s stock following the September 2001 terrorist attacks and ensuing economic downturn
dramatically reduced the retention incentives provided by then outstanding stock options and exposed
the Company to potential loss of key personnel. In response to these concerns, on May 15, 2002, the
Company’s Board unanimousiy adopted the 2002 Team Member Retention Stock Option Plan (the
“Team Member Retention Plan”), which authorized the issuance of up to 540,000 shares of the
Company's common stock upon exercise of options granted under the plan.

On the date the plan was approved by the Board, the Compensation Committee, as Plan
Administrator, approved one-time special retention grants of options covering all 540,000 shares
available under the plan to 39 non-executive key Team Members. None of the Company's executive
officers received option grants under this plan. All options granted under this plan vest at a rate of 25%
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per year over a four-year period, have a term of five years from the date of grant, and an exercise price
of $8.37 per share, which was the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date.
As of October 31, 2004, options to purchase 412,600 shares remained outstanding under this plan.
Shares subject to options granted under the Team Member‘Retention Plan that have lapsed or
terminated do not become available for future option grants and no further grants will be made under
the plan. Options granted under the Team Member Retention Plan may not be transferred by the
optionee other:than by will or the laws of descent or distribution, except for certain transfers that may
be permitted by the Plan Administrator. Unless otherwise determined by the Plan Administrator, an
optionee whose relationship with the Company or any related corporation ceases for any reason (other
than termination for cause, retirement, death or disability, as such terms are defined in the plan) may
exercise the portion of the option that is vested as of the date of termination prior to the earlier of the
option’s specified expiration date and the three-month period following such cessation. Unless
otherwise determined by the Plan Administrator, in the event the optionee is terminated for cause, the
options terminate upon the optionee’s natification of such cause. Unless otherwise determined by the
Plan Administrator, in the event the optionee retires, dies or becomes disabled, the portion of the
option that is vested as of the date of retirement, death or disability may be exercised prior to the
earlier of the option’s specified expiration date and one year from the date of the optionee’s termination
date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the optionee dies after termination but while the option is still
otherwise exercisable, the portion of the option that is vested as of the date of termination may be
exercised priof to the earlier of the option’s specified expiration date and one year from the date of
death, uniless the Plan Administrator determines otherwise. '

Special Director Option Grants

As of October 31, 2004, options to purchase 10,800 shares remained outstanding under special
option grants that were made to the Company’s nonemployee directors in August 2000. These options
were granted in connection with a Company-wide adjustment stock option grant. These option grants
are administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board. The term of each option is five years
from the date of grant, and the options vested in full one year from the date of grant. Restrictions
relating to transferability of these options and the terms on which they may be exercised in the event
the optionee’s relationship with the Company ceases are substantially similar to those described under
the description of the Company’s Team Member Retention Plan above.

1999 Team Member Plan

In connection with the acquisition of MountainGate Imaging Systems Corporation in August 1999,
ADIC assumed MountainGate's stock option plan. This plan, which was subsequently renamed the
1999 Team Member Plan, had been approved by MountainGate's shareholders. As of October 31,
2004, options to purchase 78,050 shares of common stock were outstanding under this plan at an
average exercise price of $33.62 per share, and 314,118 shares remained available for future grant. All
options granted under this plan vest at a rate of 25% per year over a four-year period, have a term of
five years from the date of grant, and must be granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market
value of the Company's common stock on the grant date. Restrictions relating to transferability of the
options granted under the 1999 Team Member Plan and the terms on which they may be exercised in
the event the optionee’s relationship with the Company ceases are substantially similar to those
described under the description of the Team Member Retention Plan above.

item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the section entitied “Certain
Transactions™in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountants Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled
“Report of the Audit Committee” and “Independent Registered Public Accountants” in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
a. The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements:

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public AccountingFirm ....................... 36
Consolidated Balance Sheets at October 31, 2004 and 2003 (Restated) ............ 37
Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period

ended October 31, 2004 ... ... . . . 38
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three

years in the period ended October 31, 2004 (Restated) .................. ... ... 39
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period

ended October 31, 2004 . ... ... ... . . e 40
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. ............. .. ... .. .. ... ... ... 41

(2) Allfinancial statement schedules are omitted since the required information is not
present or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because
the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits. See page 70 for index to exhibits.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

(item 15b)

Et)x(r':\i&iatr Description Page
T Restated Articles of Incorporation of ADIC (Exhibit 3.1) _(—A_)
3.2 Restated Bylaws of ADIC (Exhibit 3.2) (B)

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 12, 1996, between ADIC and ChaseMellon
Shareholders Services, L.L.C., as Rights Agent (Exhibit 4.2) (C)
4.2 Specimen Cammon Stock Certificate (Exhibit 4.2) (D)

10.1 Lease Agreement and Work Letter Agreement between The Quadrant Corporation
and ADIC (Exhibit 10.1) (E)
10.2 Lease Agreement between Opus Northwest LLC and ADIC (Exhibit 10.1) (F)
10.3 *  ADIC Bonus Plan (Exhibit 10.3) (B)
104 *  Amended 1997 Stock Purchase Plan (Appendix C) (G)
10.5 *  ADIC 1996 Stock Option Plan (Exhibit 99.2) (H)
10.6 *  ADIC 1999 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (Appendix B) (G)
10.7 * 1997 Stock Option Plan of Pathlight Technology, Inc (Exhibit 99.3) )
10.8 *  ADIC 2002 Team Member Retention Stock Option Plan (Exhibit 10.9) (D)
109 * 1999 Team Member Plan (Exhibit 99.1) (H)
10.10* Outside Directors August 2000 Stock Option Program (Exhibit 99.1) 0]
10.11* Farm of Indemnification Agreement (Exhibit 10.5) (J)

10.12* Schedule of Indemnification Agreements
10.13* Form of Change of Control Agreement (Exhibit 10.1) (K)
10.14* Schedule of Change of Control Agreements

10.15* Letter agreement with William Britts regarding expatriate related expenses (Exhibit
10.15) (B)

10.16* Form of 1999 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option
Agreement

10.17* Form of 1999 Stock incentive Compensation Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option
Agreement for Non-Employee Directors

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
2341 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
31.1 Certification of Peter H. van Oppen, Chair and Chief Executive Officer of Advanced

Digital Information Corporation, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey
Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Jon W. Gacek, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President-
Finance and Operations of Advanced Digital Information Corporation, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended pursuant to
Séction 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

70




Exhibit .
Number Description Page

32.1 Certification of Peter H. van Oppen, Chair and Chief Executive Officer of Advanced

Digital Information Corporation, as adopted pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Jon W. Gacek, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President-

Finance and Operations of Advanced Digital Information Corporation, as adopted
pursuant to 1 U.S.C. Section 1350 pursuant to pursuant to Section 9086 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to Form S-4 filed on February 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31,
2003.

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to Form 10-12G/A filed on August 22, 1996

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 31, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 31, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended Juiy 31, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to designated appendix of the Proxy Statement filed on January 30,
2004,

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to Form S-8 Registration No. 333-93429 filed on
December 22, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to Form S-8 Registration No. 333-61082 filed May
17, 2001,

Incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 31, 1996.

incorporated by reference to designated exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended July 31, 1999.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has, duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

ADVANCED DIGITAL INFORMATION CORPORATION

PETER H. vaN OPPEN

Peter H. van Oppen
Chair and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: January 12, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
PeTER H. vAN OPPEN Chair and Chief January 12, 2005
Peter H. van Oppen Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

JON W, GACEK Chief Financial Officer and January 12, 2005
Jon W. Gacek Executive Vice President-
Finance and Operations
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Tom A. ALBERG Director January 12, 2005
Tom A. Alberg
CHRISTOPHER T. BAYLEY Director January 12, 2005

Christopher T. Bayley

FRanK M. (“PETE”) HIGGINS Director January 12, 2005

Frank M. (“Pete”) Higgins

JOHN W. STANTON Director January 12, 2005

John W. Stanton

WALTER F. WALKER Director January 12, 2005

Walter F. Walker
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Tom A. Alberg
Partner, Madrona Investment Group

Christopher T. Bayley
Chairman, Dylan Bay Companies

Frank M. {“Pete”) Higgins
Partner, Second Avenue Partners

John W. Stanton
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Western Wireless Corporation

Peter H. van Oppen
Chair and Chief Executive Officer, ADIC

Walter F. Walker
Chief Executive Officer,
The Basketball Club of Seattle
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